Fort Ord
Reuse Authority

Board Packet
For

Board Meeting
April 3, 2009




You're Invited to "
come and join us
for the -

FORA/ESCA
Field Trip

We will visit the ESCA Residential

Quality Assurance Pilot Project sites L Lo
Friday - April 3, 2009 “%
Meet at FORA Conference Facility -
Parking Lot :
201 13t Street, Bldg. 2925 3
Marina, CA 1
RSVP to Charlotte at 883-3672 or F
a-mail - charlotte@fora.org R
Transportation will be provided. :
Please be prompt. : :
We will return in time for FORA Board Meeting, S
which starts at 3:30 A

. 1 . . .
. ! i i

e e e et i e et e e
v } 1l 1 3 :




Fort Ord Reuse Authority

100 12" Street, Building 2880, Marina, CA 93933
Phone: (831) 883-3672 e Fax: (831) 883-3675 e www.fora.org

AMENDED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Friday, April 3,2009 ~ 2:15 p.m. Field Trip and 3:30 p.m. Meeting
FORA Conference Facility/Bridge Center
201 13" Street, Building 2925, Marina (on the former Fort Ord)

2:15 - 3:15 pm FORA Board Field Trip to ESCA Residential Quality Assurance (RQA) Pilot Project
sites near CSUMB and on Eucalyptus Road

1.

2.

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL at 3:30 P.M.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD: Members of the audience wishing to address the Board on matters
within the jurisdiction of the Authority but not on the agenda may do so during the Public Comment
Period. You may speak for a maximum of three minutes on any subject. Public comments on
specific agenda items will be heard at the time the matter is being considered by the Board.

CONSENT AGENDA ACTION
a. March 13, 2009 board meeting minutes

b.  General Jim Moore Boulevard Improvement Project
(Phase IV) - Contract Amendment

¢.  Memorandum of Understanding among County of Monterey,
City of Seaside and Fort Ord Reuse Authority regarding
the Central Coast Veterans Cemetery

OLD BUSINESS .
a. Habitat Conservation Plan approval process INFORMATION

b. Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project -
status reports

i.  Memorandum of Understanding hetween Marina
Coast Water District and Monterey Regional Water
Pollution Control Agency INFORMATION

ii. California Public Utilities Commission project approval
process INFORMATION



¢. Imijin Office Park Project

i. Approval of lease agreement with Marina Coast

Water District ACTION/ INFORMATION
i, Resolution authorizing property sale ACTION
7. EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT
a. Administrative Committee report INFORMATION
b. Executive Officer’s travel report INFORMATION
c. Department of Toxic Substances Control Land Use

Covenants annual reporting INFORMATION

d. Rabobank debt consolidation / priority capital improvements
loan INFORMATION
e. Status update of outstanding receivables INFORMATION

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE
8. ADJOURNMENT

(Information about items on this agenda is available at the FORA office at 100 12" Street, Building
2880, Marina, on the former Fort Ord or by calling 831-883-3672 or by accessing the FORA website

at www.fora.org.)

|, Linda L. Stiehl, deputy clerk of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("FORA”), do hereby certify that a copy
of the foregoing Amended Agenda was posted on the front door posting place at the FORA Main
Office and in the public notice case at the entrance to the FORA Conference Facility at 1:30 p.m. on
March 31, 2009.

Dated this 31% day of March 2009 .
Linda L. Stiehl, deputy clerk



P

UL ‘sivauIuT | Co M— m m wownvss
aYIIPISoM B « - n——u S

6002 'c Ay
JISIA PIold pJeog VO

weiSo1J UonBIPIWYY
JUIWNIZY IANRIIA00)) SIIAIIS [B)UIWUOIIAUY

ALIoyIny asnd piQ Mog



/
DUT “SioDUT . O o \%
. (==

N

SHH]IISEN] X piQ o4

=/

s Apnis 101id
aguRINSsSY AjljlenDd jenuspisay

12180 dUBIAIU0D YO
W gL:g lesubaqinol

INOY INOJ sng



Uy ‘sraaubugy

SLHIISOM

 dnoin

¢ dnoin
7 dnoin

[ dnoin

surdnoasy vIA

BAIY APt
10[1d VO 9pISeaS

(VIIN) By asuodsay
SUOTHUNJA] S1B[] JoiRd

F VO’
TOLLIS) 1TE T

eIy Apmi§ 10[id

(VOY) 2oueInssy Aypen()
[ENUSPISaY HINI1SD
SANIAIPY
JEIE gLCEELT)

N AQ SaNIATIOY PIaL]



‘sio2ubug
SHHIISEM

LT )
B CA0) R A i
seruadoad Y53 U0 LORELLLIGHE [FUDGIPE JO04
90CC-TEE WUMOH VN0
{004) Apsowmy asnay pag 1o
0] SR
600Z ThudY
ALIALLDY G134 ONY
ONLLLND NOLLVLIIOIA 40 SYIHY
WYHD0Ud NOLLYKIGNTY ¥253 YHOJ

| (1 J T
PECH PoARd

wued vouz KV

very wom piotd [
=

Asepunog eery ._I.__

|, swuodesy swvoninp L.

pusoET

r.ﬁ.l g I|.....v e

PP S

AP SN HHEY TN YOS NI P

.

SONIANOY
[O1d DHIN pue [BAOWY UOIIBIAZIA




..u_S.. \muum.ﬁmtm
OHI|2IsOM

uore)a:




our s1ouibug
SYIIISIM




- ouy ‘sisouibug

L2 1ISoM

(WD q) buiddep jeoisAydoan)
|e31b1q — apiseag

B 3 B

mo:m.:,wm_o aoelINg — sje|d hux._m.n_

apiseosg

=

uonebiisaau] Ajewouy — gININSD

SONIAOY PIOL]



‘sroourbug

SHIIISOM

LIV
WRmopm .y ‘Arne ) fasquo 9
A YOS Y03 .
- | R
AN TN
Farveo - drrud LEDS &

# 3wz £g8D vawofieD 7 LeOVN
1005 DAY 1)

[0 s

yI 0 y
00T 21eds

o ORI (]

L 1w £ T& S BI1 9T

Am
(yreig) asuodsay

PUD 00INGOT

Arepinog-veygy
o] peasaydean 4

(INIO3T

ADURIMSSY AR [BLUSPISaY
paQ Ho g

depy ued
PAPYTD dVIN

NDGBELE

OBBSE.S

098BE.S

DFESELY NT88ELS D088y

2122380 2122360 2122340 2122320 2822300

2122400

1 L
Or88e.s 0I88¢E.5 0088¢.y

0B£TTIC 09€LeIz orezele ird x4 ¥4 Pli} w44 k4

HOFETTIT




- our ‘sisoubug

HIf21SoM

ws ‘siiqo

1

p leamny

L . \\

L .‘._; - ; .k.\
s9znj ‘sulie jjews
‘opeualb aonoeiy



"BEY ‘Sizoubuy
SJI3ISIA

: m d Q >~_._o£:ML_Mm“Mw @

A2QUIDDD(] A]4D7] :2SD2]a.4 pa1a3AD]

S VI AISJUOIN/SHRQ A9y [o( ‘Furjied
809§ eunde ‘I NOW ‘SoSuey] uonoy
wnsu] ‘ue[d pesodoid ¢ dnoir) yei
A2QUIDAON AJ4D7] *aSD2]DY PIJo3ID ]

S VI AI0IUOA /S RO Ay 19T ‘Sunjie]
£09§ BUNSEY ‘I NON ‘Se8uey uonoy
wu] ‘Woday S/ ¢ droin [eulg yeiq
A2QUIDAON (14D :3sD3]2Y PaIaSiv]

S VYA YMoN juswrdo[aAd( pue snduie))
HO GNNSD Teld pasodoiq 7 dnoip yei(q
L2qui)daS o107 25D2JaY Pajadin]

VA UOSLLEL)

seq axmng ‘uefd oM SA/TH  dnoin yeiq
ISNSNY A1405] JaSD2]IY pPaSiv]

o N JuswdopeAd( pue sndwe)-110
FINNSD ‘Hodoy SA/TY ¢ dnoip [eurq yeiq

Ay 1077 asVa]aY pa1a3]

S, VA AQIJUOIA/S e Aoy

[2( ‘Buryreq eoeg eunseT ‘[ NON ‘Seduey
ooy WUy ‘Wodoy SA/MY € dnoin eI
judy 21077 1asv3]9y paja3iv]

S.VIN

AKSISJUOIA /SR A [o(T ‘Suryjieq ©oag
eungeT ‘IO ‘SoSuey Uonoy WLIU]
UB[d oM SA/TY € dnoip [eur yeiq
j14dy 21077 :aSV22Y poIASD]

- S, VIIA yuoN 1udwdo[oaa( pue sndue))
B0 FNNSD Hoday SA/TY ¢ dnorp yeiq
j14dy a7y :asvajay pa1a3iv]

SVIN

quoN 1udwdorpasg pue sndwe)-jJO
dINNSD Ueld J1oMm SA/TY ¢ dnoin [eury

SJuAWND0( JoleIN 600C I VOSH




DT SISDLIGUT ~— Anouiny ssnay |, A
SYIIISS N : PJO 104 T

'90S€-£88-1€8 PUINOH Y VOISH PaedIpap sy uo sajepdn op1aoid o) 9nunuod osye s VIO e
wod di-easa-eaoy//:dny .

S]a2YS Jovf puv ‘sia)12]smau ‘SuoyviuasaLd 1sod Jo 2a1youn

2INPIYIS »

SJUIUUNIOP [DITUYID] OF SSIIID o

sdovui pajppdn

Yova.4ino QIUNUUIOD

snpys Aj1a1300 pjaif

:3uIpnyoul $aNIANIE Y VOSH VIO 92U} UC UONBULIOJUT SABY [[IM SIS e

'S110d21 [BOTUYD9] MITA
0} PI0O3Y SATRNSIUIMIPY 1) 0) SS0IB I9FJO SYUI[-IadAY pue popeo[uUMOp 2q UBD SJUSWNIOP JAIYILY o

"$5900% d03s-0u0 apia0Id 01 B3ISqaMm B paydune] Sey Wed] 3 VOSH YT, »

IPOIIAN 919 M

—dd VOSH Vd0Od




MINUTES
OF THE
FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Fort Ord Reuse Authority Conference Facility/Bridge Center
April 3, 2009

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL WW

Chair Rubio called the meeting to order at 3:36 p.m. and requested a roll call.

Voting members:

Chair/Mayor Rubio (City of Seaside) Councilmember Selfridge (City of Monterey)
Mayor McCloud (City of Carmel) Mayor Russell (City of Del Rey Oaks)
Councilmember Gray (City of Marina) Councilmember Mancini (City of Seaside)
Councilmember Kampe (City of Pacific Grove) Mayor Pendergrass (City of Sand City)
Supervisor Potter (County of Monterey) Councilmember McCall (City of Marina)
Supervisor Parker {(County of Monterey) Jim Cook (alternate for Supervisor Calcagno)

Arriving after the roll call was Councilmember Barnes. A full quorum of voting members was
present.

Ex-Officio members:

Graham Bice (UC MBEST) James Main (CSUMB)

Vicki Nakamura (Monterey Peninsula College) Dan Albert, Jr. (MPUSD)
Kenneth K. Nishi (Marina Coast Water District) Rob Robinson (BRAC)

Debbie Hale (TAMC) Gail Youngblood {BRAC Office)

Arriving after the rolt call was Hunter Harvath (Monterey-Salinas Transit). Absent were
representatives from the 17" Congressional District, the 15" State Senate District, the 27" State
Assembly District, and the U.S. Army.

With a quorum present Chair Rubio called the meeting to order.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Rubio asked Councilmember Ken Gray, who agreed, to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Chair Rubio announced that there was a quorum of board members present on the special board
field trip to the ESCA Residential Quality Assurance (RQA) Pilot Project sites near CSUMB and

on Eucalyptus Road. The group had met in the FORA Conference Facility parking lot, where a
bus was waiting to take them to the sites. The tour was scheduled from 2:15 - 3:15 p.m.

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD - none

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
April 3, 2009
Page 1



CONSENT AGENDA

There were three items on the Consent Agenda: ltem 5a (March 13, 2009 board meeting
minutes), Item 5b (General Jim Moore Boulevard Improvement Project (Phase V) — Contract
Amendment), and ltem 5¢ (Memorandum of Understanding among County of Monterey, City of
Seaside and Fort Ord Reuse Authority regarding the Central Coast Veterans Cemetery). Mayor
McCloud asked if authority counsel had reviewed the contract amendment and Mr. Bowden
replied yes. There were no public comments. Motion to approve Items 5a, 5b and 5¢c was
made by Mayor Russell, seconded by Councilmember McCall, and carried.

OLD BUSINESS

item 6a - Habitat Conservation Plan (*“HCP”) approval process: Executive Officer Houlemard
guided the members through a PowerPoint slide show presentation, which included a
background/summary of the approval process since it started in 1996. He said there had been
five draft versions of the HCP since discussions began 13 years ago and eight changes in

. leadership of the regulatory agencies, which had delayed reaching resolution on a final document.
He reported on the current status and outlined the key points in the Joint Powers Authority ("JPA”)
Agreement, the Implementing Agreement, and the Implementing Ordinance/Policy. He closed
with a review of the current approval schedule, which anticipates final approval in early 2010,
when the permits can be issued. Jim Cook thanked Mr. Houlemard and Mr. Endsley, on behalf of
the County, for their hard work in moving this important approval process forward. Mr. Cook
asked about the topics of discussion for the April 8" meeting, and Mr. Houlemard replied that
projected development figures are needed from all parties before any meaningful calculations of
the financial figures could determined. Mayor Russell asked about the duration/termination of the
JPA, and Mr. Houlemard replied 50 years, but it could be extended if habitat requirements remain.
Authority Counsel Bowden clarified that the parties are not obligated to remain members of the
JPA and could terminate their membership, but the HCP requirements are obligatory and
perpetual.

ltem 6b — Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project ("RUWAP")— status report:

item 6bi — Memorandum of Understanding (‘MOU") between Marina Coast Water District
“MCWD") and Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency (‘MRWPCA"): MCWD
General Manager Jim Heitzman reported that there is plenty of winter water and a three-agency
draft agreement is out that will ensure water availability for all who qualify. He reported good
progress reaching agreement on the MOU had been made, adding that he would be meeting
again with MRWPCA General Manager Keith Israel on Monday to finalize the RUWAP
agreement. He said he expects to have all parties on board by mid-April. Mr. Heitzman
announced that Congressman Farr had managed to insert $3 million for the RUWAP in an
appropriations bill, which will strengthen the regional water plan being considered by the
California Public Utilities Commission.

Item Bbii ~CPUC project approval process: Mr. Heitzman reported that CPUC had opened the
hearings on the regional project and the Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”) public comment
period had been extended 15 days. He stressed the importance of getting all the necessary
agreements signed before the CPUC would approve the project and added that CalAm is
moving forward in approving their agreement. He said there is a lot of optimism that the
RUWAP will be selected by the CPUC commissioners.

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
April 3, 2009
Page 2




Mayor McCloud asked that FORA staff send a specific mailing address for sending project
support letters. Mr. Heitzman said he would send the address as well as drafts of proposed text
to all who want them. Councilmember Gray asked if the CEQA document out for public review
would be sufficient for all the regional water projects, and Mr. Heitzman replied no, because
more project specific work needs to be done. Executive Officer Houlemard recognized
MRWPCA General Manager Keith Israel, who commented that Mr. Heitzman'’s report provided a
good summary. He added that they are down to finalizing the last two agreements and that
three or four agreements are expected to be finalized within two weeks. He said this action will
move the CPUC approval process forward significantly.

Item 6¢ — Imjin Office Park Project

Chair Rubio recused himself from the discussion of this item, and 1% Vice Chair Potter assumed
the chair's position.

Item 6¢ci — Approval of lease agreement with Marina Coast Water District: Executive Officer
Houlemard provided the background of this agreement, including the current terms and
conditions. He said it comports with the Board'’s previous lease approvals. A handout was
distributed showing payments owed to FORA by AMBAG, which totaled $220,855.92. Mr.
Houlemard requested flexibility to use some of these financial charges on interest owed as
credits in order to take advantage of energy efficiency programs that AMBAG has currently
undertaken. Mayor Russell asked how FORA would benefit from any energy benefits, and Mr.
Endsley replied that AMBAG had plans to develop an energy conservation center in the new
building, which FORA would like to participate in via FORA’s Sustainable Base Reuse institute.
There were no public comments.

ltem 6cii — Resolution authorizing property sale: There were no board comments or questions.

Motion to (1) authorize the Executive Officer to execute a lease agreement with Marina
Coast Water District (“MCWD”), (2) approve Resolution No. 09-03 authorizing the
Executive Officer to execute the sales contract with MCWD and AMBAG, and (3)
authorize the Executive Officer flexibility in resolving AMBAG’s outstanding finance fees
due to FORA was made by Councilmember Mancini, seconded by Councilmember
Kampe, and carried.

Mayor Rubio assumed the Chair’s position at this time.
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

There were five items in this report; Item 7a (Administrative Committee report), item 7b
(Executive Officer’s travel report), Iltem 7c (Department of Toxic Substances Control Land Use
Covenants annual reporting), Item 7d (Rabobank debt consolidation/priority capital
improvements), and ltem 7e (Status update of outstanding receivables). Re item 7a: Executive
Officer Houlemard encouraged all to read the Administrative Committee meeting minutes, calling
them “illuminating.” Re Item 7b: He provided an oral travel report, noting his many meetings in
Washington, DC, and his efforts to participate in the federal stimulus funds and any additional
revenues in the FY 2010 budget. He reported that Congressman Farr had been able to insert $3
million for treatable (recycled) water in a Department of the Interior’s FY 2010 appropriation
budget bill. He also reported several leads for funding affordable housing, General Jim Moore
Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
April 3, 2009
Page 3




Blvd. (“GJMB”) road improvements and installation of the water pipelines. Re |tem 7d: Mr.
Houlemard said that staff is pursuing several options to open up more funding opportunities for
GJMB improvements. Re |[tem 7e: He summarized the board report and said staff is making
every effort to reach reasonable resolution within the FORA board policies and rules to collect
debts owed to FORA.

8. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE

A copy of the invitation to the ceremony commemorating the official opening of the Fort Ord
Dunes State Park at 11:00 a.m. on April 15" was in the meeting packet. All were encouraged to

attend.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Rubio adjourned the meeting at 4:12 p.m., following a motion that was made without
objection.

Minutes prepared by Linda Stiehl, Deputy Clerk.

Approve
Michael A. Hodiémard, Jr., Executive\Qfficer/Clerk N

Fort Ord Reuse Authority Board Meeting
April 3, 2009
Page 4



._FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
e e

C . General Jimo Boulevard Ipement Projeét (Phase IV) —
Subject:

Contract Amendment
Meeting Date: April 3, 2009
Agenda Number: 5b

ACTION

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize an amendment to the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s (“FORA”s) existing construction
contract with Raminha Construction, to be funded by Marina Coast Water District
(*MCWD"), to provide for the modification of the potable water pipeline in General Jim
Moore Boulevard (“GJMB”).

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

At its meeting of October 2008, the FORA Board of Directors authorized a construction
contract with Raminha in the amount of $3,987,480 (plus 10% contingency) to perform
earthwork and utility installation for the realignment of GJMB from Coe Avenue to the Del
Rey Oaks northerly city limit. The contract documents originally included the instaliation of
a potable water pipeline as a part of the MCWD distribution system. Subsequent to contract
award, MCWD provided modifications to its original design, resulting in an increased cost
and the need for this contract amendment.

The resultant price increase is $331,157, with a prior reduction of $73,837, for a net
increase of $257,320. The MCWD Board of Directors has approved, by resolution (copy
attached), the increased funding obligation plus a contingency on the entire MCWD
obligation to the two MCWD schedules contained in the FORA contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by Controlier

None to FORA. The requisite contract amendment cost to accommodate the work will be
$331,157. MCWD will provide the funds for payment to FORA’s contractor.

COORDINATION:

MCWD, FORA Administrative and Executive Committees

Prepared %% Zroved by/ Eé%%/& %

James A. Feefey, PE— MIC ael A. Houlemard, Jr.




Attachment to Item 5b
April 3, 2009 FORA Board Meeting

Resolution No. 2009-03
Resolution of the Board of Directors
Marina Coast Water District
Authorizing Expenditure of an Increased Amount of Construction Costs to
Install a 30-inch Potable Waterline within the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s
General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase IV Improvement Project Alignment

March 10, 2009

RESOLVED by the Board of Directors (“Directors™) of the Marina Coast Water District
(“District”), at a regular meeting duly called and held on March 10, 2009 at the business office of
the District, 11 Reservation Road, Marina, California as follows:

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved Resolution 2008-34 on August 13, 2008
Adopting the Ord Community Budget and Compensation Plan for FY 2008/2009; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors approved Resolution 2008-53 on October 14, 2008
authorizing an expenditure to fulfill the District’s financial obligation for funding construction
costs for the 30-inch diameter potable waterline in the General Jim Moore Boulevard Phase IV
Improvement Project and the total authorized amount was to be $2,650,000, including a 12.4%
contingency amount; and,

WHEREAS, the funding of this project will come from the 2006 series of bond proceeds;
and,

WHEREAS, the GIMB contractor, FORA, and the District have negotiated an increase in
the cost of the project based on modifications to the design for a total amount, mcludmg a
10.89% contingency, to not exceed $2,935,000.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Marina
Coast Water District does hereby authorize the expenditure of an increase in construction costs to
install a 30-inch potable waterline within the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s General Jim Moore
Boulevard Phase IV Improvement Project alignment and directs the General Manager to take all
actions and execute all documents as may be necessary or appropriate to give effect to this
resolution, for which the total authorized value for the project shall not exceed $2,935,000.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on March 10, 2009, by the Board of Directors of the Marina
Coast Water District by the following roll call vote: '

Ayes: Directors___Nishi, Moore, Burns, Lee, Gustafson
Noes: Directors___None
Absent: Directors__ None

Abstained: Directors_None

Attachment to Item 5b
April 3, 2009 FORA Board Meeting




HowarQYGustafion, President

ATTE

Jim Heﬁrﬁm, Secretary

CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

The undersigned Secretary of the Board of the Marina Coast Water District hereby
certifies that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2009-03 adopted
March 10, 2009,

J i?Z[eitanﬁﬁ, Secretary /



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

Memorandum of Understanding among County of Monterey, City of
Subject: Seaside and Fort Ord Reuse Authority regarding the Central Coast
Veterans Cemetery
Meeting Date: Apri{ 3, 2009
Agenda Number: 5c ACTION
RECOMMENDATION(S):

Authorize the Executive Officer to execute a Memorandum of Understanding among County of Monterey,
City of Seaside and Fort Ord Reuse Authority (“FORA") regarding Central Coast Veterans Cemetery
(“CCVC") endowment funding (“Attachment A").

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

FORA has long supported establishment of the CCVC on former Fort Ord. Over the past several years,
FORA has:

1. Supported adoption of AB 3035, authored by former Assemblymember Laird, which allows creation of
an endowment fund into which donations would be deposited to fund cemetery operations and
maintenance costs. Once the endowment fund reaches $3.3 million, the State of California would
apply for federal veterans cemetery grant funding to build the CCVC.

2. Appointed Seaside Councilmember Tom Mangcini to be FORA's representative to the Monterey
County Cemetery Citizen’s Advisory Committee (“CAC’).

3. Advanced $191,000 toward preparation of a CCVC Master Development Plan through a
reimbursement agreement with the County of Monterey.

4. Obtained a total of $35,500 in pledges and $163,000 in loans from local jurisdictions/agencies for the
$191,000 advance to the County of Monterey.

5. Approved use of $15,000 remaining from the $191,000 advance to solicit and select an endowment
parcel purchaser and agreed to invest a portion of FORA’s 50% share of land sales revenue to be
realized from sale of the endow t parcel to help fund the state enacted endowment fund.

The attached agreement is consistentvith previous Board action regarding the CCVC.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

FORA reimbursed the County of Monterey for about $175,000 to date. If there are any remaining funds,
the agreement with Seaside and the County states that they will be applied to the solicitation and
selection of a buyer/developer for the 28 to 30-acre endowment parcel. When the money has been
raised and a purchaser is selected for the endowment parcel, FORA's $191,000 contribution could be
reimbursed from endowment parcel sales or lease proceeds. There is potential for recovery of all or a
portion of FORA’s monies advanced should the solicitation process prove successful.

COORDINATION:

Monterey County Redevelopment Agency and City of Seaside staff, Royston Hanamoto Alley & Abey,
Executive Committee, Administrative Committee, Authority Counsel

Prepared by %\m» ;BM Reviewed by "'.>. gw Z’M{){

Jonathan Garcia Steve Endsley

Approved by A’ %W /&) / %ﬂ” Lo

ichael A. Houlgsrrard Jr.




DRAFT 3/25/2009 ATTACHMENT A

Item 5¢
FORA Board Meeting, April 3, 2009

DRAFT TERMS FOR MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE
COUNTY OF MONTEREY, THE CITY OF SEASIDE AND THE FORT ORD
REUSE AUTHORITY REGARDING DEVELOPMENT OF THE CALIFORNIA
CENTRAL COAST VETERANS CEMETERY

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by and among the
County of Monterey (County), the City of Seaside (City), and the Fort Ord Reuse Authority
(FORA), collectively referred to hereinafter as the Parties. This MOU is dated for reference
on April __,2009.

RECITALS
A. The Parties seek to cooperate in the development of the California Central Coast Veterans
Cemetery (Cemetery). The Cemetery will be located on the former Fort Ord. The site is
identified on Exhibit 1. Portions of the Cemetery are within the jurisdiction of the City and
the County.

B. This MOU establishes a program to fund an Endowment for the operation of the
Cemetery. The Parties expect the Endowment funding to be in place by June 1, 2010. The
Endowment is estimated to be $3.4 million. This MOU should be interpreted to carry out
that goal.

AGREEMENT
1. The Project. The Parties agree to implement the California Central Coast Veterans
Cemetery Master Plan (Plan). The Plan envisions development of a 178-gross acre site
(Project) into six planned land use areas. These areas include: 1) the approximately 78.7-acre
Cemetery, 2) three separate parcels for ancillary use, 3) habitat mitigation areas, and 4) two
development parcels along with related rights-of-way and 5) other public improvement areas.
FORA agrees to incorporate this project into their Capital Improvement Program.

Project’s areas are described as follows. These areas are designated on the Map attached as
Exhibit 2:

a. Cemetery Burial Grounds including Ancillary Uses

Approximately 31.1 acres within City
Approximately 47.6 acres within County
e Ancillary Uses Adjacent to Burial Grounds:
e Approximately 1.8 acres in the northwestern border of the
Cemetery
e Approximately 1.1 and .9 acres on the south border of the
Cemetery.

b. Northern Endowment Fund Opportunity Parcel



DRAFT 3/25/2009

e Approximately 28.7 acres within City
s Approximately 1.7 acres within County

c. Southern Development Area with Habitat Restoration Opportunity Area

e Approximately 30.4 acres within City
e Approximately 15.5 acres within County

2. State Cemetery Grant. The Veterans Cemetery is anticipated to be funded by a grant
from the State Cemetery Grant Program offered by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
(VA) through the National Cemetery Administration. The grant can finance administration
and design costs, cemetery features, and related equipment.

3. Endowment. The Parties collectively commit up to $3.4 million to an Endowment to
fund the long term operation and maintenance of the Cemetery, which shall be funded by sale
of either the Northern Endowment Fund Opportunity Parcel by the Parties or portions of the
Southern Development Area with Habitat Restoration Opportunity Area within the City.
Any excess revenue generated by that land sale shall be paid to the Parties as defined in the
Implementing Agreement between FORA and the City or FORA and the County, as may be
applicable, based on percentage of land ownership within their jurisdictions. FORA will
retain fifty-percent (50%) of any such excess revenue and will use such excess revenue to
reimburse FORA’s $191,000 loan to Monterey County, if not otherwise repaid by the grant
mentioned in number 2. herein, to complete the California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery
planning effort. The City and County may agree to use their individual share of the excess
revenue from that sale, if any, to fund the cost of public infrastructure needed for the
potential developments. That infrastructure includes the transportation system around the
cemelery.

The City agrees to meet the funding date of June 1, 2010. To that end, the City
agrees to comply with the development milestones outlined in Section 12 of this MOU.
Those milestones pertain to the Northern Endowment Fund Opportunity Parcel. The County
and City agree to work collaboratively to designate the Northern Endowment Fund
Opportunity Parcel for future commercial/industrial/private cemetery use. The land use
designation will depend on the level of cleanup proposed by FORA and the ability to sell the
property by June, 2010.

The City may sell the Southern Development Area with Habitat Restoration
Opportunity Area lying within the City of Seaside. That sale option is conditioned on
reaching agreement with a developer to meet the required date and sales price necessary to
fund the Endowment. The City may control the use of this portion of the southern
development parcel.

The County agrees to reserve its portion of the Southern Development Area with
Habitat Restoration Opportunity Area to meet future habitat designation requirements or as
otherwise determined appropriate by the County. If the County sells fee title to this portion of
the southern development area, it must first offer it to the City on the same terms as the best
offer received by the County. If the County develops this portion of the southern
development area, the County agrees to use its best efforts to coordinate the type of



DRAFT 3/25/2009

development with the City to ensure compatibility with the adjacent use (currently proposed
as future residential use) located in the City’s portion of the southern development area.

4. Water Allocation. The City, the County, and FORA agree to request that the U.S.
Department of the Army provide up to 10 acre-feet per year (AFY) of potable water for the
Veterans Cemetery, ancillary uses adjacent to the Veterans Cemetery, and the Northern and
Southern development parcels, Water demand has been estimated to be 2.2 AFY for the
Veterans Cemetery burial grounds. If necessary, the County agrees to allocate up to this
amount of water (2.2 AFY) for the Veterans Cemetery burial grounds. Further, the Parties
will work with the Marina Coast Water District (MCWD) to secure sufficient interim water
necessary to establish Cemetery landscaping.

5. Infrastructure. The Parties agree to contribute land sale revenues generated
from sale of the Northern Endowment Fund Opportunity Parcel in excess of $3.4 million to
support off-site infrastructure related to the Veterans Cemetery project. Improvements shall
include, without limitation, the Eastside Parkway, Parker Flats Road, Parker Flats Cut-off,
Eucalyptus Road, and storm water design, landscaping, bike lanes, pedestrian and water and
sewer improvements within the roadways. The parties also agree to explore the use of tax
increment financing to support the Veterans Cemetery Project’s off-site infrastructure.

6. Environmental Disclosures. The Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease
Registry (ATSDR) was established under the mandate of the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) of 1980. CERCLA, also known as the
"Superfund" law, authorized the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to conduct
clean-up activities at hazardous waste sites. EPA was directed to compile a list of sites
considered hazardous to public health. This list is termed the National Priorities List (NPL).
The 1986 Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act (SARA) directed ATSDR to
perform a public health assessment for each NPL site. In 1990, federal facilities were
included as sites to be proposed for or listed on the NPL. EPA placed Fort Ord on the
National Priorities List (“NPL”) on February 21, 1990. The US Army, in consultation with
EPA, is implementing groundwater and munitions and explosives of concern (MEC)
remediation on former Fort Ord. FORA has entered into an Environmental Services
Cooperative Agreement (ESCA) to complete a portion of the US Army’s MEC remediation
work on certain portions of former Fort Ord, which includes the California Central Coast
Veterans Cemetery parcel, to be transferred from the US Army to FORA under the Finding
of Suitability for Early Transfer 5 (FOSET 5). As FORA completes MEC remediation work
through the ESCA on former Fort Ord and transfers this property to local jurisdictions,
groundwater and soil Land Use Covenants (LUC) restricting certain property uses will
transfer with the property to future owners.

7. Munitions Response Sites.  Based on the uses as proposed in the 1997 Base Reuse
Plan, FORA agrees to meet the requirement of the Administrative Order on Consent and
receive regulatory site closure before transferring the property to Seaside or the County.
FORA anticipates the portion of the Veterans Cemetery site that was remediated by the US
Army and has an approved Record of Decision will be ready to transfer to the jurisdictions
no later than June, 2010, after the regulatory agencies have confirmed that site closure is




DRAFT 3/25/2009

complete in this area. In addition, the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA) covenant will need to be granted by the Army.
The remainder of the Veterans® Cemetery site is anticipated to transfer in the 2012 to 2013
timeframe.

The FORA ESCA Team will have on-going remediation activities adjacent to the Veterans
Cemetery which may require the removal or on-site detonation of any potentially explosive
munitions found. This activity may impact construction and/or operations at the Veterans
Cemetery site. If intrusive activity is to occur in an area where MEC is expected, and for all
MEC demolition operations, an exclusion zone will be established to ensure public safety.
During any intrusive activity (e.g., excavations) in areas where MEC is likely to be present,
the only personnel authorized to be inside the exclusion zone are personnel essential to the
operation. When an exclusion zone includes public roads, businesses, residences, or ongoing
construction projects, the affected entities or individuals will be notified and asked to
temporarily relocate outside the exclusion zone.

8. Land Conveyance. FORA agrees to convey title to the land described in Exhibit 1
in multiple conveyance events once the regulatory agencies have confirmed site closure. The
land will be conveyed with applicable conveyance documentation, land use controls and deed
restrictions. These include but are not restricted to the FOSET 5, Monterey County
Ordnance Ordinance (Chapter 16.10 of the County Code), City of Seaside Ordnance
Ordinance (Chapter 1534 of the Seaside Municipal Code), and the Remedial
Design/Remedial Action, Land Use Controls Implementation, and Operation and
Maintenance Plan - Parker Flats Munitions Response Area Phase L.

9. Coordination and Cooperation. City will be the lead agency for disposition of
property to generate funds for the Endowment. The State of California Department of
Veterans’ Affairs will be lead agency for the proposed Veteran Cemetery. The County will
be lead agency for its portion of the southern development area. The Parties shall cooperate
in good faith and diligently proceed using all reasonable means available to accomplish the
sale of land assets to a selected developer for the purposes of funding the Endowment prior to
June 1, 2010.

10.  Annexation. The entire Veterans’ Cemetery area with the exception of the County’s
portion of the southern development area with habitat restoration opportunity area (approx.
15.5 acres), shall be annexed to, and be included within City's corporate limits. If the County
sells its portion of the southern development area to the City, this land sale area shall be
annexed to the City. The Parties shall cooperate fully to accomplish annexation.

11.  Environmental Review. Parties shall cooperate with City as lead agency relating to
the disposition of property to generate funds for the Endowment, including environmental

review.

12. Milestones
The Parties agree to comply with the following schedule:
a. Execute Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 4/8/09




DRAFT 3/25/2009

No Lead Agency)

b. Issue Request for Qualifications/Proposals (RFP/Q) 6/1/09
(City Of Seaside Lead Agency-PMC Consultant Assistance)

c. Approve Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) 8/1/09
(City of Seaside Lead Agency-relating to parcel funding the Endowment)
d. Complete Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP) 12/1/09
(FORA Lead Agency)

e. Complete annexation to City of Seaside 4/1/10
(City of Seaside Lead Agency)

f. Complete environmental review 5/1/10
(City of Seaside Lead Agency —relating to parcel funding Endowment)

g. Execute Disposition and Development Agreement 5/1/10
(City of Seaside Lead Agency —relating to parcel funding Endowment)

h. Convey land to developer 6/1/10

(City of Seastde Lead Agency —relating to parcel funding Endowment)

13.  County and Agency Approvals. The Director of Housing and Redevelopment, or
his or her designee, is authorized to act on behalf of the County and the Agency as to matters
of administration and interpretation of this MOU, except for matters expressly required in
this MOU to be acted upon by the County’s Board of Supervisors or the Agency’s Board of
Directors. The Director of Housing and Redevelopment, or designee, at his or her sole
discretion, may refer any matter under this MOU to the County Board of Supervisors or the
Agency Board of Directors for action in a timely manner under this MOU.

14.  Termination. The purpose of this MOU is to facilitate the June, 2010, funding of an
endowment for the operation of the California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery. The
endowment needs to be funded by this date in order to seck funds for the construction of the
cemetery under the State Cemetery Grant Program. If this purpose is frustrated by the failure
to fund the endowment by the time stated, then this MOU may be terminated on thirty (30)
days’ notice by action of one or more of the legislative bodies of the County, City or FORA.

15. Amendment by Written Recorded Instrument. This MOU may be amended or
modified in whole or in part, only by a written instrument executed by all of the parties.

16.  Governing Law. This MOU shall be governed by and interpreted by and in
accordance with the laws of the State of California.

17. Entire MOU. This MOU, along with any exhibits and attachments hereto, constitutes
the entire MOU between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof.

18. Interpretation. It is agreed and understood by the parties hereto that this MOU has
been arrived at through negotiation and that no party is to be deemed the party which
prepared this MOU within the meaning of Civil Code Section 1654.



CITY OF SEASIDE,
a municipal corporation

COUNTY OF MONTEREY,
a political subdivision of the State of California

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY,
a public corporation of the State of California

DRAFT 3/25/2009



OLD BUSINESS

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

Subject: Habitat Conservation Plan approval process

Meeting Date: April 3, 2009
Agenda Number: 6a INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION(S):

Receive status report regarding preparation of Habitat Conservation Plan (“HCP") and
State of California 2081 Incidental Take Permit (“2081 permit”) process.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

Recent Developments:

On November 14, 2008, staff advised the Fort Ord Reuse Authority (‘FORA”) Board
regarding comments made by U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (“USFWS”) and California
Department of Fish and Game (“CDFG”) that caused concern that there might be further
delay to the HCP process. FORA staff contacted USFWS and CDFG regional
executives to address outstanding issues and secured agreement to reinvigorate the
process to close on remaining issues. FORA, its HCP consultant ICF Jones & Stokes
(“Jones & Stokes”), and FORA member agencies and jurisdictions held working
meetings on December 3, 2008 and on December 17, 2008. The HCP working group
reviewed several outstanding issues, including:

a) Defining the role of a future Joint Powers Authority,

b) Determining HCP costs and identifying an entity to hold HCP endowments,

c) Determining borderlands management costs and responsible parties,

d) Developing a framework to integrate existing 2081 permits into the basewide
HCP and 2081 permit, and

e) Determining the HCP revisions to accommodate USFWS requirements for a
“self-regulating” HCP.

A follow-up conference call was held on January 12, 2009 and an in-person meeting on
February 4, 2009. Conference calls were also held with Bureau of Land Management
(“BLM"), USFWS, and CDFG on January 15, 2009 and with Monterey County on
January 21, 2009. Jones and Stokes indicated that there could be a “submittable”
document ready to turn over to USFWS and CDFG solicitors by mid-March 2009 as the
February meeting was successful and narrowed remaining issues significantly. Since
that time, USFWS and CDFG did not meet deadlines for submittal of feedback causing
Jones & Stokes to revise their timetable for submittal. Revised draft timeline will be
presented to the Board on April 3, 2009.

In addition, FORA staff and counsel completed drafts of a Joint Powers Agreement,
Implementing Agreement, and jurisdictional implementing ordinances/policies that
would serve as the governing agreements for the overall HCP. These documents have
been circulated to all parties with numerous comments received to date that have




strengthened the documents. Staff welcomes further input as these important ancillary
documents are readied for review by USFWS and CDFG solicitors. FORA held a
special Administrative Committee meeting on March 11, 2009 to provide an HCP
update and facilitate review of these ancillary documents. The Administrative
Committee met on March 25, 2009 and discussed outstanding issues and work
products. These will be summarized and listed for the Board on April 3, 2008. The
Administrative Committee will hold a follow up discussion at its April 8, 2009 meeting.

Previous developments:

On September 30, 2008, a conference call including representatives from FORA,
USFWS, Denise Duffy (“DD&A") [National Environmental Policy Act (*NEPA")/California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) consultant], BLM, and others was held and the
schedule noted in #3 below was endorsed.

HCP working group meetings were held on September 9 and 16, 2008 to discuss the
steps to complete the Public Draft HCP and schedule. At the September 9 meeting,
representatives of the FORA Administrative Committee were given an opportunity to
engage FORA'’s consultant about issues related to schedule and content. At the
September 16 meeting, FORA's jurisdictions discussed the remaining chapters with
USFWS and confirmed that the project schedule remains on target for release of a
review draft document by January 2009.

On June 18, 2008, the HCP working group reviewed the revised Monitoring Chapter
and provided feedback to Jones & Stokes on the Implementation and Funding
Chapters.

On May 5, 2008, DD&A held a conference call meeting of the principals to schedule
final Environmental Impact Statement (‘EIS")/Environmental Impact Report (“EIR")
document processing.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

Funding for this item was included in the FY 07 and 08 budgets and was carried over to
the FY 09 budget. The Board increased the contract for Jones & Stokes by $81,023 at
its March 13, 2009 meeting, using previously approved budget authority.

COORDINATION:

Executive Committee, Administrative Committee, Legislative Committee, Coordinated
Resources Management and Planning Team, City of Marina, County of Monterey, U.S.
Army, USFWS and CDFG personnel, Jones & Stokes, DD&A, UC, BLM, and various
development teams.

// B
Prepared by. -~ Approved W/&% ‘%7____

Steve Endsley Michael A-Hoylemard,

FORA Board Meeting
April 3, 2009
ltem 6a — Page 2



Fort Ord Reuse Authority

FORA i

Y VYV VY

new course

'YV VvV V¥




FORA

Current Statu_s, Report

(tied to FORA CFD fee revenue:prOJectlons)
v' HCP endowment fundlng scenarlo model

v" Refined Borderlands matnx

FORA

Joint Powers Authority
Ag reement__

n

“Fort Ord Regzl' r

Cooperative — 12 votlng -entlties
FORA, County, Marina, Seaside, Del Rey
Oaks, Monterey, State Parks, UC, CSU,
MPC, MPRPD, ahd-”MCWD

HCP Implementatlon Authonty
FORA stafﬁngza Sugh 2




Implementing _A_greement

» HCP PermltteeslBLM com'mlt
resources to conservelmanage _
special-status specnes SR

> Agencies authomze‘-pasewﬁide 'permits.

- Implementlng_Agr_,, emen
pnor to _P

FORA

Implementing
Ordinanc.elPolicy

» Permittees ensure lmplementatson by:
v Collect Development Fees

v Require development pro;ects to apply for
certificates of mclus:on when take occurs.

FORA




\./

FORA

Schedule
April 8 - FORA Ad_mihistrétiVe Committee
May 7 — HCP working group meeting at FORA
May 15 — Agencies accept Administrative Draft
August 14 — EIR/EIS to USFWS Solicitor

October 23 ~ Solicitor's comments incorporated,
EIR/EIS public review period opened (90 days)

Early 2010 - HCP ap_prov_éd -ahd permits issued

; : .

FORA

Questions




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOAR

- G D REPORT
"OLDBUSINESS =

Subject: Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project — status reports

Meeting Date: April 3, 2009
Agenda Number: 6b INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION:

1. Receive an update on the Memorandum of Understanding (*MOU”) between Marina
Coast Water District (‘MCWD") and Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control
Agency ("MRWPCA") regarding the Regional Urban Water Augmentation Project
("RUWAP").

2. Receive an update regarding the Water for Monterey County project (“WFMC”)
approval process with the California Public Utilities Commission (*CPUC”). Board
members and jurisdictions are urged to write to the CPUC supporting the WFMC
alternative during the public comment period (January 30, 2009 to April 15, 2009).

BACKGROUND:

The WFMC Coalition, formerly referred to as the Regional Plenary Oversight Group
(“REPOG"), was formed during a process begun by the Division of Ratepayer Advocates
(“DRA” of the CPUC, with the assistance of the University of California Santa Cruz
(“UCSC”"). DRA and UCSC engaged in developing a comprehensive water resource plan
for the Monterey Region. To accomplish this goal, DRA facilitated a series of meetings with
all interested parties for almost two years. The objective of the meetings was to achieve
consensus through collaboration, for supplying the water needs of the Monterey Region in a
cost-effective and sustainable way.

Lyndel Melton from RMC Water & Environment presented the WFMC proposal to the Fort
Ord Reuse Authority (‘“FORA”) Administrative Committee on January 30, 2008 and to the
FORA Board on February 8, 2008. The project’s approach depends on regional
cooperation among the various water management entities and land use jurisdictions to
develop a sustainable, pragmatic, publicly and politically acceptable, and cost effective
Regional Water Supply Plan.

WFMC is distinct from, but compatible with FORA and MCWD Boards of Directors’ “Hybrid
Alternative” (June 10, 2005) to augment Fort Ord water resources. WFMC would reduce
some infrastructure requirements of the hybrid project and may offer substantial savings to
FORA, MCWD, jurisdictional developers, and other users. MCWD and FORA have
proceeded with the Hybrid program, which includes both recycled water and desalinated
water, and MCWD has completed California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA’)
documentation for this augmented water program. MCWD must enter into an MOU with
MRWPCA to proceed with the RUWAP or similar approach. MCWD approved a draft
agreement prior to MRWPCA'’s consideration of the agreement on February 23, 2009, and
there was staff level agreement by the general managers prior to the MRWPCA meeting.
At its February 23, 2009 meeting, MRWPCA did not approve the MOQU, but chose to put
together a Board member negotiating committee to resolve the final differences with
MCWD. On March 23, 2009, the MRWPCA Board of Directors met jointly with
representatives from MCWRA and MCWD and endorsed moving forward with a version of
the regional project that will likely be compatible with FORA-MCWD’s hybrid project and the




preferred alternative denoted in the PUC’s EIR. As of this writing, details are being worked
out.

DISCUSSION:

WFMC Coalition’s initial planning goal was to identify a regional solution to Monterey’s
water supply and environmental problems that satisfied a set of planning criteria. The
identification timeline for the regional project corresponded to the Coastal Water Project
Environmental Impact Project process, with a due date for submission to the CPUC Energy
Division Environmental Impact Report (“EIR") Project Manager by June 1, 2008. The EIR
work on WFMC was completed and submitted on time, with funding from MCWD, California
American Water, and MRWPCA. The project uses 100% of the region's recycled water,
meets proposed State Water Resources Control Board (“SWRCB”) Ocean Plan regulations,
meets urban water needs, meets agricultural water constraints, protects the National Marine
Sanctuary, and provides a carbon neutral energy source.

On November 14, 2008 the FORA Board endorsed WFMC. On January 30, 2009, the
State CPUC released its Draft EIR for the Coastal Water Project, comparing the three main
alternatives in addition to undertaking additional environmental analysis required under
CEQA. The WFMC alternative was deemed the preferred alternative as it induces more
inter agency cooperation and provides for reduced costs to the region. It was also deemed
more regionally compact than the Moss Landing Project alternative, and preferable to the
North Marina project alternative because the latter relies on the untested technology of slant
wells and also preferred because it better alleviates potential for salt water intrusion.

On the other hand, the North Marina project alternative was preferred by the CPUC staff to
the Moss Landing project alternative because the latter relies on a “once-thru-cooling
system” which endangers marine life and may be prohibited in the near future. in addition,
CPUC staff indicated that if the North Marina project alternative eliminated the use of slant
wells and used vertical wells similar to that proposed for WFMC it would be designated the
“environmentally superior alternative” under CEQA. It is unclear whether such a redesign of
the North Marina project is technically or financially feasible; therefore, it is likely that the
EIR findings will focus new attention and potential for implementation on WFMC.

It is appropriate that FORA, it's member jurisdictions, and other interested parties provide
the CPUC with letters of support for the WFMC alternative stressing its emphasis on
regional cooperation and other strengths. The CPUC comment period is scheduled to close
on April 15, 2009.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed hy FORA Controller

Significant savings could be realized by FORA, FORA members, jurisdictional developers,
and other users should the WFMC move ahead.

COORDINATION:
WFMC Coalition, MCWD, MRWPCA, Executive Committee, and Administrative Committee

Prepared by QM Reviewed by ‘j S&'&ﬁr\%ﬁw

Jonathan Garcia Steve Endsley

Approved byM é/ /%- =
Mighael A. Houlefraed, Jr.
FORA Board Meeting
April 3, 2009
Item 8b — Page 2




OLDBUSINESS

Imjin Office Park: (i.) approval of lease agreeménf'.wit'ﬁ 'Marin'a 'C.oast'

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT

Subject: Water District and (ii.) resolution authorizing property sale
Meeting Date: April 3, 2009 ACTION/
Agenda Number: 6¢ INFORMATION
RECOMMENDATION(S):
1. Authorize the Executive Officer to execute a lease agreement with Marina Coast
Water District (‘MCWD") (“Attachment A"). ACTION

2. Approve Resolution 09-03, authorizing the Executive Officer to execute the sales
contract with MCWD and the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments
(‘AMBAG”") (“Attachment B"). ACTION

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

On January 11, 2008, the FORA Board directed staff to identify a developer to buy-out the
Fort Ord Reuse Authority's (“FORA") interest in the Imjin Office Park (“IOP") project
through a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) process. MCWD responded to FORA’s RFP,
expressing interest in constructing FORA's IOP building and leasing 8,809 square feet of
office space to FORA in exchange for the property. On December 12, 2008, the FORA
Board authorized the Executive Officer to execute an agreement with MCWD regarding the
sale of FORA property and joint building consistent with the term sheet.

AMBAG also owns property on the Imjin Office Park site and has found itself in need of
securing a developer to purchase its interest in the project. MCWD is also proposing, in
similar terms to that of its FORA offer, to acquire AMBAG'’s property in exchange for
leasing the remaining 6,192 square feet of the FORA office building to AMBAG. FORA
and AMBAG would become co-tenants of the site and MCWD would develop the former
AMBAG site at some point in the future.

As requested, on January 9, 2009, FORA staff provided an updated term sheet as an
information item upon completion of the FORA property appraisal. Staff recommend
approval of the above recommendatigns to allow FORA, AMBAG, and MCWD to complete
purchase and lease agreements arjg/move forward with office construction.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

The proposed lease agreement provides an exchange of fair market land value for rental
value at the Imjin Office Park site, as determined by third-party consultants. Approval of
staffs recommendation would provide a new office facility during FORA’s remaining years
and clear the way for Dunes on Monterey Bay development by the City of Marina.

COORDINATION:
MCWD, Authority Counsel, Executive Committee, and Administrative Committee

Prepared by @mﬂ%«. Duncio Reviewed by ™, S“{Zxra 5‘%4(

/ Jonathan Garcia ‘Stgve Endsley

Approved by /W % % Y. ?’/z—,

()M'éhael A. Houlesprad/




ATTACHMENT A
[tem 6¢
FORA Board Meeting, April 3, 2009

DRAFT

OFFICE LEASE

between

MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT

Landlord

and

FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

Tenant

12400001 9\419669.2:32609



TABLE OF CONTENTS

124000019\4 £9669.2:32609



Office Lease Summary
Date of Lease , 2009
1. Landlord: Marina Coast Water District
2. Tenant: Fort Ord Reuse Authority

3. Premises: Approximately 8,809 square feet of office space in the Imjin Office Park
located at the northeast corner of Imjin Parkway and Second Avenue in the city of
Marina, California.

4. Term Commencement: Lease will commence when certificate of occupancy is delivered
to tenant.

5. Lease Expiration: Midnight on the last day of the 57" full month following the delivery
of the certificate of occupancy to the tenant.

6. Rent: See Articles 5 and 6 of the Lease

7. Tenant's Address for Notices: Michael A. Houlemard, Jr., Executive Officer, Fort Ord
Reuse Authority, 100 12th Street, Building 2880, Marina, CA 93933

8. Landlord’s Address for Notices: General Manager, Marina Coast Water District, 15
Reservation Road, Marina, CA 93933-2099

9. Option to Extend: Upon the expiration of the initial Lease term, Tenant will have the
option to extend the Lease Term for a period of three years. Subsequent to the expiration
of the three-year period, Tenant shall have the option to renew the Lease Term for two
additional terms of two years each.

Exhibit(s):
Exhibit A — Diagram of Land and Premises

Exhibit B — Schedule of Tenant Improvements

- ii-
1240000194 19669.2:3260%



OFFICE LEASE

This Lease is entered into as of , 2009 (the “Effective Date”), by and
between Fort Ord Reuse Authority, a California public agency(“Tenant”), and Marina Coast
Water District, a California public agency (“Landlord”).

For good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the parties agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS

As used in this Lease, the following terms are defined as follows:
(i) “Claims” is defined in Section 14.2.2.

(ii) "Default" is described in Section 21.

(iii) “Environmental Laws™ is defined Section 10.5.
(iv) “Hazardous Materials” is defined in Section 10.4.
(v) “Interest Notice” is defined Section 4.2.2.1.

(vi) “Land” is defined in Article 2.

(vii) “Land Value” is defined in Section 5.1.1.1.

(viii) "Landlord is defined in the preamble.

(ix) “Landlord’s Parties” is defined in Section 14.1.
(x) “Laws and Orders” is defined in Section 9.1.

(xi) "Lease" is defined in the preamble.

(xii) "Lease Term" is defined in Section 4. 1.

(xiii) “Tenant” is defined in the preamble.

(xiv) “Tenant’s Parties” is defined in Section 14.1
(xv) “Option Term” is defined Section 4.2

(xvi) “Option Rent Notice” is defined Section 4.2.2.2

(xvii) "Premises"” is defined in Article 1.

- iii-
12400001514 19669 232609



(xviii) "Rent" is defined in Section 5.1.
(xix) "Rental Value" is defined in Section 5.1.1.

(xx) "Termination Date" is defined in 4.1.

- iv-
1240000194 19669.2:32609



ARTICLE 1. PREMISES

Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant rents from Landlord approximately 8,809 Square Feet of
Class "A" Office space in the Imjin Office Park located at the northeast corner of Imjin Parkway
and Second Avenue and herein referred to as the “Premises.

ARTICLE 2. ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY

Landlord does not own the real property on which the Premises are to be constructed.
TENANT, as seller, and Landlord, as buyer, will concurrently with the execution of this Lease,
enter into the following other agreements:

2.1 aPurchase and Sale Agreement (Purchase Agreement) for the sale and purchase
of the real property described in the Purchase Agreement (Land);

2.2 a Note
23 a Deed of Trust
These agreements are integrated and contain mutually dependent provisions.

The Land and Premises are shown on a diagram attached to this Lease as Exhibit “A”.
Tenant acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Purchase Agreement. Landlord’s obligations under
this Lease are conditioned on the acquisition of the Land by Landlord. If Landlord does not acquire
the Land, this Lease shall be of no further force or effect except for any provisions herein that
specifically survive the termination of this Lease.

ARTICLE 3. TENANT IMPROVEMENTS

Tenant improvements will be provided as set forth in the schedule which is attached hereto as
Exhibit “B”.

ARTICLE 4. LEASE TERM

4.1 Lease Term. The provisions of this Lease shall be effective as of the date of this
Lease. The term of this Lease (Lease Term) shall commence on date that escrow closes on
Landlord’s purchase of the Land and improvements that contain the Premises, and shall
terminate on midnight of the last day of the fifty-seventh (57™) full month following close of

CSCIOwW.

4.2 Option To Extend Term. Landlord grants to Tenant one (1) option to extend the
Lease Term (Extension Option) for a period of three years (Option Term), subject to the
conditions described in this section 4.2. At the end of the Option Term, Tenant shall have the

-1-

12400819\419669.2:32609



option to renew the Lease Term for two additional terms of two years each. The term of the
Lease, including the option periods, shall not exceed twenty (20) years.

4.2.1  Option Rent. The rent payable by Tenant during the Option Term
(Option Rent) shall be equal to the Fair Market Rental Value of the Premises as of the
commencement of the Option Term as determined by a jointly retained appraiser.

4.2.2  Exercise of Option. The Extension Option must be exercised by Tenant,
if at all, only at the time and in the manner provided in this subsection 4.2.2.

(a) Interest Notice. If Tenant wishes to exercise the Extension Option,
Tenant shall deliver written notice (Interest Notice) to Landlord no less than twelve (12) months
before the expiration of the initial Lease Term.

{b) Option Rent Notice. After receipt of Tenant's Interest Notice,
Landlord shall deliver notice (Option Rent Notice) to Tenant no less than ten (10) months before
the expiration of the initial Lease Term, stating the Option Rent, based on the determination of
the Fair Market Rental Value of the Premises on the commencement date of the Option Term as
determined by current, independent appraisal.

(¢) Exercise Notice, If Tenant wishes to exercise the Extension
Option, Tenant must, on or before the earlier of (a) the date occurring nine (9) months before the
expiration of the initial Lease Term or (b) the date occurring thirty (30) days after Tenant's
receipt of the Option Rent Notice, exercise the Extension Option by delivering written notice
(Exercise Notice) to Landlord.

(d) Amendment to Lease. If Tenant timely exercises its Extension
Option, Landlord and Tenant shall, within fifteen (15) days after the Option Rent is determined
under this section 4.2 or Article 24, execute an amendment to this Lease extending the Lease
Term on the terms and conditions set forth in this section 4.2.

ARTICLE 5. RENT, RENTAL VALUE , LAND VALUE

5.1 Monthly Rent. Monthly rent for the initial Lease Term, as determined by a
current, independent appraisal, shall be One Dollar Seventy Cents ($1.70) per square foot
(“Rent/Rental Value™).

5.2  Land Value. The Land Value as determined by a current, independent appraisal is
Nine Hundred Eighty-eight Thousand Dollars ($988,000.00).

5.3  Contribution of Land in lieu of Rent. The parties will exchange land for rent as
provided in this section. Landlord will credit the Land Value against the $1.70 per square foot
per month Rental Value for the initial Lease Term, such that Tenant's payment of Rental Value
will be off-set by the value of the land conveyed by Tenant to Landlord under the Land Sale
Contract. Landlord will pay to Tenant the difference between the Land Value and the Rental
Value as provided in Section 3.1.4 of the Purchase and Sale Agreement. Tenant will pay to
Landlord any rent in addition to Rental Value.

- 9.

124008194 19669.2:32609



5.3.1 Payment of Rent. Payments of rent in addition to Rental Value, if any, are due
and payable in advance on the first day of each month. Unpaid rent will not accrue interest.

ARTICLE 6. ADDITIONAL RENT

In addition to the Rent, Tenant shall be responsible for and shall pay before delinquency
as additional rent

6.1 All real estate taxes and assessments levied or assessed against the leased
Premises during the Lease Term and any extension of the Lease Term. Tenant shall pay
Landlord the taxes attributable to Tenant within ten (10) days after receipt of a written statement
setting forth the taxes applicable to Tenant property; and

6.2  All costs of occupying, maintaining and operating the Premises, including, but not
limited to, sewer and garbage services to the Premises, outside common area maintenance costs
and property insurance for the Property, pro-rated 8,809/15,001; and

6.3  Utilities. Tenant shall be responsible for payment of all utilities, which are
separately metered to the Premises. If permitted by law, Tenant, without Landlord’s consent,
shall have the right at any time and from time to time during the term or any extensions to
contract and pay for services from a different company or companies providing utility service
(including but not limited to electric, water, sewer, heat and waste or trash removal) for said
Premises; and

6.4  Tenant shall pay prior to delinquency all taxes, if any, assessed against and levied
upon Tenant owned alterations, utility installations, trade fixtures, furnishings, equipment and all
personal property of Tenant contained in the Premises or elsewhere. When possible, Tenant
shall cause its trade fixtures, furnishings, equipment and all other personal property to be
assessed and billed separately from the real property of Landlord. If any of Tenant’s said
personal property shall be assessed with Landlord’s real property, Tenant shall pay Landlord the
taxes attributable to Tenant within ten (10) days after receipt of a written statement setting forth
the taxes applicable to Tenant property.

ARTICLE 7. SECURITY DEPOSIT
7.1 Tenant shall not be required to provide a deposit.
ARTICLE 8. USE

8.1 Permitted Use. Tenant shall use and occupy the Premises solely for the purpose of
professional offices and meeting rooms, and for none other without the prior written consent of
Landlord. Tenant shall not use or occupy, or permit the Premises to be used or occupied, for any
other purpose without Landlord's prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld

or delayed.

12400001 9\ 1966%.2:32609



8.2  Rules and Regulations. Tenant shall comply with the rules and any reasonable
amendments or additions promulgated by Landlord from time to time for the safety, care, and
cleanliness of the Premises or for the preservation of good order (Rules and Regulations).

83  Additional Restrictions on Use. In addition to complying with other provisions of
this Lease concerning use of the Premises:

83.1  Tenant shall not use or knowingly allow any person to use the Premises
for any purpose that is contrary to the Rules and Regulations, that violates any Laws and Orders,
that constitutes waste or nuisance, or that would unreasonably annoy other occupants of the
Premises or the owners or occupants of buildings adjacent to the Premises; and

832  Tenant shall not use or knowingly allow any person to use the Premises
for any purpose that violates any recorded covenants, conditions, and restrictions that now or
later affect the Real Property of which Landlord has informed Tenant as long as Landlord does
not modify, amend, or enter into any covenants, conditions, or restrictions that contravene the
provisions of this Lease or that otherwise adversely affect Tenant's use of the Premises or the
conduct of its business on the Premises. Landlord represents that it has provided Tenant with a
copy of all other recorded covenants, conditions, or restrictions affecting the Real Property as of
the date of this Lease of which Landlord has knowledge. Landlord represents and warrants that
there are no known violations of any of those covenants, conditions, or restrictions that would
adversely and materially affect Tenant's use and occupancy of the Premises.

ARTICLE 9. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

9.1 Definition of "Laws and Orders." For purposes of this Article 9, the term "Laws
and Orders" includes all federal, state, county, city, or government agency laws, statutes,
ordinances, standards, rules, requirements, or orders now in force or hereafter enacted,
promulgated, or issued. The term also includes government measures regulating or enforcing
public access or occupational or health or safety standards for employers, employees, landlords,
or tenants.

9.2  Repairs, Replacements, Alterations, and Improvements. Tenant shall continuously
and without exception repair and maintain the Premises, including Tenant Improvements,
Alterations, fixtures, and furnishings, in an order and condition in compliance with all Laws and
Orders. Tenant, at Tenant's sole expense, shall promptly make all repairs, replacements,
alterations, or improvements needed to comply with all Laws and Orders to the extent that the
Laws and Orders relate to or are triggered by (a) Tenant's particular use of the Premises, (b) the
Tenant Improvements located in the Premises, or (¢) any Alterations located in the Premises.

9.3  Collateral Estoppel. The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, or the
admission of Tenant in any judicial or administrative action or proceeding that Tenant has
violated any Laws and Orders shall be conclusive, between Landlord and Tenant, of that fact,
whether or not Landlord is a party to that action or proceeding.

ARTICLE 10. HAZARDOUS MATERIAL

- 4-

124000019\419669.2:32609



10.1  Use of Hazardous Material. Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous
Material, as defined in section 10.5, to be generated, brought onto, used, stored, or disposed of in
or about the Premises by Tenant or its agents, employees, contractors, subtenants, or invitees,
except for such substances that are required in the ordinary course of Tenant's business
conducted on the Premises or are otherwise approved by Landlord. Tenant shall:

10.1.1 Use, store, and dispose of all such Hazardous Material in strict
compliance with all applicable statutes, ordinances, and regulations in effect during the Lease
Term that relate to public health and safety and protection of the environment (Environmental
Laws), including those Environmental Laws identified in section 10.5; and

10.1.2  Comply at all times during the Lease Term with all Environmental Laws.

10.2  Notice of Release or Investigation.  If, during the Lease Term (including any
extensions), either Landlord or Tenant becomes aware of (a) any actual or threatened release of
any Hazardous Material on, under, or about the Premises or (b) any inquiry, investigation,
proceeding, or claim by any government agency or other person regarding the presence of
Hazardous Material on, under, or about the Premises, that party shall give the other party written
notice of the release or investigation within five (5) days after learning of it and shall
simultaneousty furnish to the other party copies of any claims, notices of violation, reports, or
other writings received by the party providing notice that concern the release or investigation.

103  Indemnification. Landlord and Tenant shall, at that party's sole expense and with
counsel reasonably acceptable to the other party, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the other
party and the other party's shareholders, directors, officers, employees, partners, affiliates, and
agents with respect to all losses arising out of or resulting from the release of any Hazardous
Material in or about the Premises or the violation of any Environmental Law, by that party or
that party's agents, contractors, or invitees, This indemnification includes all losses, liabilities,
obligations, penalties, fines, claims, actions (including remedial or enforcement actions of any
kind and administrative or judicial proceedings, orders, or judgments), damages (including
consequential and punitive damages), and costs (including attorney, consultant, and expert fees
and expenses) resulting from the release or violation. This indemnification shall survive the
expiration or termination of this Lease.

10.4 Remediation Obligations; Tenant's Rights on Cleanup by Landlord. If the
presence of any Hazardous Material brought onto the Premises by either Landlord or Tenant or
by Landlord's or Tenant's employees, agents, contractors, or invitees results in contamination of
the Premises, that party shall promptly take all necessary actions, at the party's sole expense, to
return the Premises or the Premises to the condition that existed before the introduction of such
Hazardous Material. Tenant shall first obtain Landlord's approval of the proposed remedial
action, which may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. This provision does not limit the
indemnification obligations set forth in section 10.3. The costs of any Hazardous Material
cleanup or remediation undertaken by Landlord during the Lease Term shall be borne by
Landlord and shall not be included in Operating Expenses, as defined in Article 6.

1240000194 19669.2:3260%



10.5 Definition of "Hazardous Material." As used in this Article 10, the term
"Hazardous Material" shall mean any hazardous or toxic substance, material, or waste that is or
becomes regulated by the United States, the State of California, or any local government
authority having jurisdiction over the Premises. Hazardous Material includes:

(1) Any "hazardous substance," as that term is defined in the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA}
(42 United States Code sections 9601-9675);

(i)  "Hazardous waste," as that term is defined in the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976 (RCRA) (42 United States Code sections 6901-6992k);

(iii)  Any pollutant, contaminant, or hazardous, dangerous, or
toxic chemical, material, or substance, within the meaning of any other applicable federal, state,
or local law, regulation, ordinance, or requirement (including consent decrees and administrative
orders imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning any hazardous, dangerous, or toxic
waste, substance, or material, now or hereafter in effect);

(iv)  Petroleum products;

(v) Radioactive material, including any source, special nuclear,
or byproduct material as defined in 42 United States Code sections 2011-2297g-4;

(vi)  Asbestos in any form or condition; and

(vii)  Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) and substances or
compounds containing PCBs.

ARTICLE 11. REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

11.1  Landlord’s Repair and Maintenance Obligations. Landlord shall be responsible
for the maintenance and repair of the exterior shell of the building, including the roof, exterior
electrical and plumbing systems, walls and paved areas surrounding the building. Landlord shall
also maintain all exterior landscaping, Repairs shall be made promptly when appropriate to keep
the applicable portion of the Premises, and other items in the condition described in this clause.
Landlord shall not be in default of its repair and maintenance obligations under this section 11.1
if Landlord performs the repairs and maintenance within thirty (30) days after written notice by
Tenant to Landlord of the need for such repairs and maintenance. If, due to the nature of the
particular repair or maintenance obligation, more than thirty (30) days are reasonably required to
complete it, Landlord shall not be in default under this section 11.1 if Landlord begins work
within this thirty-day (30-day) period and diligently prosecutes this work to completion. Except
as provided herein, no abatement of rent and no liability of Landlord shall result for any injury to
or interference with Tenant's business arising from the making of or failure to make any repairs,
replacements, alterations, or improvements in or to any portion of the Premises, fixtures,

appurtenances, or equipment. (see sec. 11.2)

1240080194 19669.2:32609



11.2  Tenant’s Repair and Maintenance Obligations. Tenant is responsible for the

“maintenance and repair of the interior portion of the building, including glass windows, interior
plumbing and electrical systems, and all interior surfaces. Tenant shall at Tenant’s own cost and
expense maintain the interior portion of the Premises in good and sanitary order, condition and
repair. If Landlord makes repairs due to Tenant’s failure to do so as provided for in this section
11.2, within thirty (30) days after a written demand from Landlord (including a reasonably
particularized statement), Tenant shall pay Landlord Landlord's reasonable, actual, out-of-pocket
costs incurred in connection with the repairs and maintenance plus interest at the interest rate
described in section 22.2 from the date these costs are incurred until the date of Tenant's
repayment. If either party breaches this Lease, the non-breaching party may perform the
breaching party’s obligation. Within thirty (30) days after written demand by the non-breaching
party, (including a reasonably particularized statement), the breaching party must pay the
performing party’s reasonable costs incurred in connection with such performance.

ARTICLE 12. ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS

12.1 Landlord's Consent to Alterations. Tenant may not make any improvements,
alterations, additions, or changes to the Premises (Alterations) without obtaining Landlord's ptior
written consent.

12.1.1 Costs of Review. If it is reasonably necessary for Landlord to obtain the
assistance of architects, engineers, or other consultants to evaluate the proposed Alterations,
Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for amounts paid by Landlord for the reasonable fees and costs
of those consultants in reviewing the proposed Alterations.

12.1.2 Removal of Alterations. When Tenant requests Landlord's consent to a
proposed Alteration, Tenant may ask Landlord in writing whether Landlord will require that the
Alteration be removed on expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term. Landlord shall
respond to this inquiry in writing within fifteen (15) days. If Landlord states in its response that it
will not require removal, Tenant shall not be required to remove this Alteration.

12.2  Compliance of Alterations With Laws and Insurance Requirements. Tenant shall
cause all Alterations to comply with the following:

(i) Applicable Laws and Orders; or
(ii)  Applicable requirements of a fire-rating bureau.

Tenant shall also comply with those requirements in the course of constructing the
Alterations. Before beginning construction of any Alteration, Tenant shall obtain a valid building
permit and any other permits that may be required by any government entity having jurisdiction
over the Premises. Tenant shall provide copies of those permits to Landlord before the work begins.

12.3  Manner of Construction. Tenant shall build Alterations entirely within the
Premises and in conformance with Landlord's construction rules and regulations, using only
contractors and subcontractors approved in writing by Landlord. Tenant agrees that all

-7

1240000174 19669.2:32609



construction work will be performed by contractors and subcontractors who have collective
bargaining agreements with, and are not delinquent in their contributions to, the appropriate
building and construction trade union(s) that are affiliated with the Building and Construction
Trades Department of the AFL-CIO, with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters or with the
United Brotherhood of Carpenters and Joiners and who employ workers covered by such
union(s). The contracts shall provide that the work and scope provisions of the applicable
collective bargaining agreement of each union will be explicitly observed. All work relating to
any Alterations shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner, using new materials
equivalent in quality to those used in the construction of the initial improvements to the
Premises. All work shall be diligently prosecuted to completion.

12.4 Landlord's Property. Tenant may remove any Alterations, improvements, signs,
fixtures, or equipment that it installs or places in, on, or about the Premises from time to time.
Tenant must repair any damage to the Premises caused by that removal.

ARTICLE 13. COVENANT AGAINST LIENS

13.1 Covenant Against Liens. Tenant shall not be the cause of any liens or allow such
liens to exist, attach to, be placed on, or encumber Landlord's or Tenant's interest in the
Premises, or Real Property by operation of law or otherwise. Tenant shall not suffer or permit
any lien of mechanics, material suppliers, or others to be placed against the Premises, with
respect to work or services performed or claimed to have been performed for Tenant or materials
furnished or claimed to have been furnished to Tenant or to the Premises on behalf of or for the
benefit of Tenant. Landlord has the right at all times to post and keep posted on the Premises any
notice that it considers necessary for protection from such liens.

If any such lien attaches or Tenant receives notice of any such lien, Tenant shall cause the
lien to be released and removed of record within ten (10) days after Landlord's demand. Despite any
other provision of this Lease, if the lien is not released and removed within ten (10) days after
Landlord delivers notice of the lien to Tenant, Landlord may immediately take all action necessary
to release and remove the lien, without any duty to investigate the validity of it, unless Tenant has
commenced legal action to contest, dispute, or defend the claims of the lienholders and the validity
of the liens and continues to prosecute this action to a successful judgment releasing the lienholder's
lien against Tenant's or Landlord's interest in the Premises. All expenses (including reasonable
attorney fees) incurred by Landlord in connection with release of the lien shall be considered
Additional Rent under this Lease and be immediately due and payable by Tenant.

ARTICLE 14. EXCULPATION, INDEMNIFICATION, AND INSURANCE

14.1 Definition of "Tenant Parties" and "Landlord Parties.” For purposes of this Article
14, the term "Tenant Parties" refers singularly and collectively to Tenant and Tenant's officers,
directors, shareholders, partners, trustees, members, agents, employees, and independent
contractors as well as to all persons and entities claiming through any of these persons or entities.
The term "Landlord Parties" refers singularly and collectively to Landlord, Landlord’s manager
and their respective trustees, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members, agents,

12400094 1966%.2:32609



employees, and independent contractors as well as to all persons and entities claiming through
any of these persons or entities.

142 Indemnification.

14.2.1 Tenant's Indemnification of Landlord Parties. To the fullest extent
permitted by law but subject to this section 14.2, Tenant shall, at Tenant's sole expense and with
counsel reasonably acceptable to Landlord, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Landlord
Parties from and against all Claims, as defined in subsection 14.2.2, from any cause arising out
of or relating (directly or indirectly) to this Lease, the tenancy created under this Lease, or the
Premises, including:

(a) The use or occupancy, or manner of use or occupancy, of the
Premises by Tenant Parties;

(b) Any act, error, omission, or negligence of Tenant Parties in, on, or
about the Real Property;

(¢) Tenant's conducting of its business;

(d) Any alterations, activities, work, or things done, omitted, or
permitted by Tenant Parties in, at, or about the Premises, including the violation of or failure to
comply with any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, standards, rules, regulations, orders,
decrees, or judgments in existence on the Lease Commencement Date or enacted, promulgated,
or issued after the date of this Lease, except to the extent that compliance with such legal
requirements is expressly made the responsibility of Landlord in Article 9, Article 11, or Article
15; and

(¢)  Any breach or default in performance of any obligation on
Tenant's part to be performed under this Lease.

14.2.2 Definition of Claims. For purposes of this Lease, "Claims" means any
and all claims, losses, costs, damage, expenses, liabilities, liens, actions, causes of action
(whether in tort or contract, law or equity, or otherwise), charges, assessments, fines, and
penalties of any kind (including consultant and expert expenses, court costs, and attorney fees
actually incurred).

14.2.3 Type of Injury or Loss. This indemnification extends to and includes
Claims for:

(2) Injury to any persons (including death at any time resulting from
that injury);

(b) Loss of, injury or damage to, or destruction of tangible property
(including all loss of use resulting from that loss, injury, damage, or destruction); and

12400001 N E9669.2:32609



(¢) Economic losses and consequential or resulting damage, but only
to the extent incurred by Landlord in connection with (1) a holdover of the Premises by Tenant
after the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease or (2) any repair, physical construction, or
work of improvement performed by or on behalf of Tenant in the Premises.).

14.2.4 Relationship of Indemnity to Other Lease Obligations. Tenant's
agreement to indemnify Landlord and Landlord's agreement to indemnify Tenant under this
Article 14 are not intended to and shall not:

(a) Restrict, limit, or modify the parties' respective insurance and other
obligations under this Lease, such indemnity covenants being independent of the parties'
insurance and other obligations;

(b) Be restricted, limited, or modified by the parties' compliance with
their respective insurance requirements and other obligations under this Lease;

(¢) Relieve any insurance carrier of its obligations under policies
required to be carried under this Lease, to the extent that such policies cover, or if carried would
have covered, the matters subject to the parties' respective indemnification obligations; or

(d) Supersede any inconsistent agreement of the parties set forth in any
other provision of this Lease.

14.2.5 Attorney Fees. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its actual
attorney fees, expert’s fees and court costs incurred in enforcing the indemnification clauses set
forth in this section 14.2.

14.2.6 Survival of Indemnification. The clauses of this section 14.2 shall
survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease for a period of three (3) years but only
to the extent that the Claims are covered and actually paid by the indemnifying party's insurance
coverage.

14.2.7 Landlord's Indemnification of Tenant. Because Landlord is required to
maintain insurance on the Premises and Tenant compensates Landlord for such insurance as part
of Tenant's Share of Operating Expenses and because of the waivers of subrogation in section
15.10, Landlord shall, with counsel reasonably acceptable to Tenant, indemnify, defend, and
hold harmless Tenant Parties from and against all Claims for damage to property outside the
Premises to the extent that such Claims are covered by such insurance (or would have been
covered had Landlord carried the insurance required under this Lease), even if resulting from the
negligent acts, omissions, or willful misconduct of Tenant Parties. In addition, Landlord shall,
with counsel reasonably acceptable to Tenant, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Tenant
Parties from and against all Claims resulting from the negligent acts, omissions, or willful
misconduct of Landlord Parties in connection with Landlord Parties' activities in, on, or about
the Premises, except to the extent that such Claim is for damage to the Tenant Improvements and
Tenant's personal property, fixtures, furniture, and equipment in the Premises and is covered by
insurance that Tenant is required to obtain under this Lease (or would have been covered had
Tenant carried the insurance required under this Lease).

-10-

1240000 17 419669.2:32609



143  Tenant's Liability Coverage. Tenant shall, at Tenant's sole expense, maintain the
coverages set forth in this section 14.4.

14.4  Tenant’s Personal Property. Tenant shall at all times during the term of this
Lease and at Tenant's sole expense, keep all of Tenant’s personal property, including trade
fixtures and equipment and all merchandise of Tenant that may be in the Premises from time to
time, insured against loss or damage by fire and by any peril included within fire and extended
coverage insurance for an amount that will insure the ability of Tenant to fully replace the trade
fixtures, equipment, and merchandise.

14.5 Workers' Compensation Insurance. Tenant shall maintain in effect throughout
the term of this lease, at Tenant's sole expense, Workers' Compensation insurance in accordance
with the laws of California, and employers' liability insurance with a limit of not less than
$1,000,000 per employee and § 1,000,000 per occurrence.

14.6 Cancellation Clause. Any policy of insurance, required under this Article, shall
be written by insurance companies authorized to do business in California. Each policy of
insurance procured by Tenant pursuant to this Article shall expressly provide that it cannot be
canceled for any reason or altered in any manner unless at least, 10 days' prior written notice has
been given by the insurance company issuing the policy to Landlord in the manner specified in
this lease for service of notices on Landlord by Tenant.

14.7  Deposit of Insurance Policies with Landlord. Promptly on the issuance, re-
issuance, or renewal of any insurance policy required by this lease, including fire and liability
insurance policies, Tenant shall cause a duplicate copy of the policy or a certificate evidencing
the policy and executed by the insurance company issuing the policy or its authorized agent to be
given to Landlord.

14.8  Blanket Insurance Policy. Tenant may satisfy its obligations under this Article by
maintaining a blanket policy of insurance including the Premises, provided the blanket policy
does not diminish the amount or coverage of the insurance required under this Article, and
further provided that the blanket policy otherwise meets all requirements of this Article.

14.9  Landlord's Right to Procure Insurance. If Tenant fails to procure or maintain the
insurance required by this Article, Landlord may obtain that insurance and pay the premiums on
it for the benefit of Tenant. Any amounts paid by Landlord to procure or maintain insurance
pursuant to this section shall be immediately due and repayable to Landlord by Tenant with the
next then due installment of rent under this lease; failure to repay at that time any amount
expended by Landlord shall be considered the same as a failure to pay rent and a default by
Tenant under this lease.

14.10 Waiver of Subrogation. Landlord and Tenant agree to cause the insurance
companies issuing their respective property (first party) insurance to waive any subrogation
rights that those companies may have against Tenant or Landlord, respectively, as long as the
insurance is not invalidated by the waiver. If the waivers of subrogation are contained in their
respective insurance policies, Landlord and Tenant waive any right that either may have against

-11-

124000019\419669.2:32609



the other on account of any loss or damage to their respective property to the extent that the loss
or damage is insured under their respective insurance policies.

14.11 Landlord's Property Insurance. Landlord shall procure and maintain during the
Lease Term the following first party insurance coverages: Special causes-of-loss direct damage
coverage. Such coverages shall be in such amounts, from such companies, and on such other
terms and conditions as Landlord may from time to time reasonably determine. At Landlord's
option, such insurance coverage may include the risks of earthquakes, flood damage, or other
perils; business income (rental loss) and extra expense coverage; and loss payee endorsements in
favor of the holders of any mortgages or deeds of trust encumbering the interest of Landlord in
the Premises or the ground or underlying lessors of all or part of the Premises. Despite the
provisions of this section 14.11, the coverage and amounts of insurance carried by Landlord in
connection with the Premises shall at a minimum be comparable to the coverage and amounts of
insurance that are carried by reasonably prudent landlords of Comparable Buildings and workers'
compensation coverage as required by applicable law. On inquiry by Tenant from time to time,
Landlord shall inform Tenant of all such insurance carried by Landlord.

ARTICLE 15. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION

15.1 Repair of Damage by Landlord. If the Premises is damaged by fire, the elements,
unavoidable accident or other casualty, but are not thereby rendered untenantable in whole, the
Premises shall be rendered untenantable only in part, Landlord shall at its own expense cause the
damage to be repaired promptly, and the Rent meanwhile shall be abated proportionately as to
the portion of the Premises rendered untenantable. If the Premises is rendered wholly
untenantable by reason of such occurrence, the Landlord shall at its own expense cause such
damage to be repaired within ninety (90) days of said occurrence, and the rent meanwhile shall
be abated in whole, except that Landlord shall have the right, to be exercised by notice given to
Tenant within ten (10) days after said occurrence, to elect not to reconstruct the destroyed
Premises, and in such event this Lease and the tenancy hereby created shall cease as of the date
of the said occurrence.

15.2 Damage Near End of Term. Despite any other provision of this Article 15, if the
Premises is destroyed or damaged by a casualty during the last eighteen (18) months of the Lease
Term, including option periods, Landlord and Tenant shall each have the option to terminate this
Lease by giving written notice to the other of the exercise of that option within thirty (30) days
after that damage or destruction.

15.3  Waiver of Statutory Provisions. The provisions of this Lease, including those in
this Article 15, constitute an express agreement between Landlord and Tenant that applies in the
event of any casualty to the Premises. Tenant, therefore, fully waives the provisions of any
statute or regulation, including California Civil Code sections 1932(2) and 1933(4), for any
rights or obligations concerning a casualty.

-12-

12400%019419669.2:32609



ARTICLE 16. CONDEMNATION

If the Premises or any portion thereof are taken under the power of eminent domain or sold under
the threat of the exercise of said power (all of which are herein called "condemnation"), this
Lease shall terminate as to the part so taken as of the date the condemning authority takes title or
possession, whichever occurs first. If more than twenty-five percent (25%) of the land area is
taken by condemnation, Tenant may, at Tenant option to be exercised in writing within ten (10)
days after Landlord shall have given Tenant written notice of such taking (or in the absence of
such notice, within ten (10) days after the condemning authority shall have taken possession),
terminate this Lease as of the date the condemning authority takes such possession. If Tenant
does not terminate this I.ease in accordance with the forgoing, this Lease shall remain in full
force and effect as to the portion of the Premises remaining, except that the Base Rent shall be
reduced in the same proportion as the land taken bears to the total land area of the Premises.
Any award for the taking of all or any part of the Premises under the power of eminent domain
or any payment made under threat of the exercise of such power shall be the property of
Landlord, whether such award shall be made as compensation for diminution in value of the
leaschold or for the taking of the fee, or as severance damages; provided, however, that Tenant
shall be entitled to any compensation separately awarded to Tenant for Tenant relocation
expenses and/or loss of Tenant trade fixtures.

ARTICLE 17. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASING

17.1 Except as provided in this Article, subletting of any portion of the Premises, whether by
operation of law or otherwise, without prior written consent of Landlord is void and shall be a
breach of this Lease, and at the option of Landlord, shall terminate this Lease.

17.2  This lease is not assignable. Tenant shall not encumber, assign or otherwise transfer this
Lease, any right or interest in this Lease, or any right or interest in the leased Premises or any of
the improvements that may now or hereafter be constructed or installed on the leased Premises
without the Landlord’s prior written consent. Tenant, may however, assign this Lease to a
successor agency that succeeds Tenant’s authority by operation of law. Tenant shall not sublet
the leased Premises or any part thereof or allow any other person other than Tenant agents and
employees to occupy the leased Premises or part thereof.

Neither this lease nor the leasehold estate of Tenant shall be subject to involuntary assignment,
transfer, or sale, or to assignment, transfer, or sale by operation of law in any manner whatsoever
except as authorized in this lease, and any such attempted involuntary assignment, transfer or
sale shall be void.

ARTICLE 18. SURRENDER OF PREMISES

Surrender of Premises. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall
surrender the Premises in clean and good condition, ordinary wear and tear accepted. Tenant
shall have the right to remove from the Premises, and Landlord shall have the right to compel
Tenant to remove, Tenant's furniture and other personal property and any fixtures and leasehold
improvements which Tenant shall have installed at Tenant's expense. Tenant agrees to repair, at

- 13-

124000019\419669,2:3260%



Tenant's expense, any damage to the Premises resulting from the removal or any such items,
including, without limitation, repairing the floor and patching and painting the walls where
reasonably required by Landlord. All locks or bolts, alterations or improvements affixed to or
made upon said premises by either of the parties hereto shall be and become property of
Landlord, and shall be surrendered with the premises as part thereof upon the termination of this
lease. Tenant’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or eatlier termination
of this Lease. Tenant shall indemnify Landlord from any claims resulting from delay by Tenant
in so surrendering the Premises, including, without limitation, any claims made by any
succeeding tenant founded on such delay.

ARTICLE 19. HOLDING OVER

Holdover Rent. If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease with Landlord's express written consent, Tenant's occupancy shall be a
month-to-month tenancy at a rent agreed on by Landlord and Tenant but in no event less than the
Base Rent and Additional Rent payable under this Lease during the last full month before the
date of expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. The month-to-month tenancy shall be on
the terms and conditions of this Lease except as provided in (a) the preceding sentence and (b)
the lease clauses concerning lease term and extension rights. Landlord's acceptance of rent after
such holding over with Landlord's written consent shall not result in any other tenancy or in a
renewal of the original term of this Lease. If Tenant remains in possession of the Premises after
expiration or earlier termination of this Lease without Landlord's consent, Tenant's continued
possession shall be on the basis of a tenancy at sufferance and Tenant shall pay as rent during the
holdover period an amount equal to the greater of:

(i) One-hundred and fifty percent (150%) of the fair market
rental (as reasonably determined by Landlord) for the Premises; or

(ii)  Two-hundred percent (200%) of the Base Rent and
Additional Rent payable under this Lease for the last full month before the date of expiration or
termination.

ARTICLE 20. SUBORDINATION, NONDISTURBANCE, AND ATTORNMENT

The value of Tenant’s contribution of land in lieu of rent is secured by the Land. The amount of Tenant’s lien
will decline over the term of the lease as Tenant’s initial contribution is reduced by receipt of Tenant’s right to
possession under this Lease. Tenant’s security interest is senior to all other liens against the Land. Tenant
has recourse against the Land if Landlord defaults on its obligations under any of the agreements between
Landlord and Tenant. This Lease is subordinate to any other, deed of trust, or other pledge of the Land as
security for debt that Landlord may now or hereafter place upon the Land/Premises and to any and all
advances made on the security thereof and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations, replacements and
extensions thereof. Notwithstanding such subordination, Tenant’s right to quiet possession of the Premises
shall not be disturbed if Tenant is not in default and so long as Tenant shall pay the rent and observe and
perform all of the provisions of this Lease, unless this Lease is otherwise terminated. If any mortgagee,
trustee or ground landlord elects to have this Lease prior to the lien of its mortgage, deed of trust or ground

- 14-

12400001 9\419669.2:32609



lease, and shall give written notice thereof to Tenant, this Lease shall be deemed prior to such mortgage, deed
of trust or ground lease, whether this Lease is dated prior to or subsequent to the date of said mortgage, deed
of trust or ground lease or the date of the recording thereof.

Tenant agrees to execute any documents necessary to effectuate an attornment, subordination, or to make
this Lease prior to the lien of any mortgage, deed of trust or ground lease, as the case may be. If the
Premises is sold in foreclosure sale or transfer in lieu of foreclosure, Tenant will attorn to the purchaser,
transferee or landlord as the case may be, and recognize that party as Landlord under this Lease, provided
such party acquires and accepts the Premises subject to this Lease.

ARTICLE 21. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

21.1 Tenant's Default. The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default
by Tenant under this Lease:

(1) Tenant's failure to pay when due any Rent required to be
paid under this Lease if the failure continues for five (5) days;

(i) Tenant's failure to perform any other obligation under this
Lease if the failure continues for thirty (30) days after written notice of the failure from Landlord
to Tenant. If the required cure of the noticed default cannot be completed within thirty (30) days,
Tenant's failure to perform shall constitute a default under the Lease unless Tenant undertakes to
cure the failure within thirty (30) days and diligently and continuously attempts to complete the
cure as soon as reasonably possible.

21.2  Replacement of Statutory Notice Requirements. When this [ease requires service
of a notice, that notice shall replace rather than supplement any equivalent or similar statutory
notice, including any notices required by Code of Civil Procedure section 1161 or any similar or

successor statute.

21.3 Landlord's Remedies on Tenant's Default. If Tenant defaults, Landlord may
terminate this Lease and recover possession of the Premises. Once Landlord has terminated this
Lease, Tenant shall immediately surrender the Premises to Landlord.

21.4  Efforts To Relet. For purposes of this Article 21, Tenant's right to possession shall
not be considered to have been terminated by Landlord's efforts to relet the Premises, by
Landlord's acts of maintenance or preservation with respect to the Premises, or by appointment
of a receiver to protect Landlord's interests under this Lease. This list is merely illustrative of
acts that may be performed by Landlord without terminating Tenant's right to possession.

21.5  Acceptance of Rent Without Waiving Rights. Under Article 23, Landlord may
accept Tenant's payments without waiving any rights under this Lease, including rights under a
previously served notice of default. If Landlord accepts payments after setving a notice of
default, Landlord may nevertheless commence and pursue an action to enforce rights and
remedies under the previously served notice of default without giving Tenant any further notice

or demand.

-15-

1240000194 19669.2:32609



21.6 Tenant's Remedies on Landlord's Default. Landlord's failure to perform any of its
obligations under this Lease shall constitute a default by Landlord under the Lease if the failure
continues for thirty (30) days after written notice of the failure from Tenant to Landlord. If the
required performance cannot be completed within thirty (30) days, Landlord's failure to perform
shall constitute a default under the Lease unless Landlord undertakes to cure the failure within
thirty (30) days and diligently and continuously attempts to complete this cure as soon as
reasonably possible.

21.7 Removal of Tenant’s Property. Whenever Landlord shall re-enter the Premises as
provided in this Lease, any personal property of Tenant not removed by Tenant upon the
expiration of the Lease Term, or within five (5) days after a termination by reason of Tenant’s
default as provided in this Lease, shall be deemed abandoned by Tenant and may be disposed of
by Landlord in accordance with any governing laws in the State where the Property is located.

21.8 Waiver of Damages. Tenant hereby waives all claims for damages that may be
caused by Landlord’s re-entering and taking possession of the premises or removing and storing
furniture after default by Tenant hereunder and will save and hold Landlord harmless from
damages occasioned thereby, except where damage was caused by willful misconduct or gross
negligence of Landlord, its agents, employees, or authorized representatives, and no such reentry
shall be considered or construed to be a forcible entry as the same is defined in the Code of Civil
Procedure for the State of California.

21.9 Non-Waiver of Damage. Landlord’s failure to take advantage of any default or
breach of covenant on the part of Tenant shall not be or be construed as a waiver thereof, nor
shall any custom or practice which may grow up between the parties in the course of
administering this instrument be construed to waive or lessen the right of Landlord to insist upon
the performance by Tenant of any term, covenant or condition hereof, or the exercise any rights
given him on account of any such default. A waiver of a particular breach or default shall not be
deemed to be a waiver of the same or any other subsequent breach or default. The acceptance of
rent hereunder shall not be, nor be construed to be, a waiver of any breach of any term, covenant

or condition of this lease.

21.10 If Tenant abandons the Premises or this Lease is otherwise terminated due to
Tenant’s default, Landlord’s financial obligations to Tenant under the Landlord’s Promissory
Note to Tenant will be deemed satisfied. If Tenant abandons the Premises or this Lease is
otherwise terminated due to Landlord’s breach, Landlord’s financial obligations to Tenant under
the Promissory Note will not be deemed satisfied and Landlord will be required to make
payments to Tenant as provided for in the Promissory note.

ARTICLE 22. LATE PAYMENTS

-16-

12400001914 19669.2:32609



22.1  Late Charges. If after the initial term of this Lease, any Rent payment is not
received by Landlord or Landlord's designee within ten (10) days after that Rent is due, Tenant
shall pay to Landlord a late charge of dollars § as liquidated damages, in
lieu of actual damages (other than interest under section 22.2 and attorney fees and costs under
section 25.1). The parties agree that this late charge represents a reasonable estimate of the
expenses that Landlord will incur because of any late payment of Rent (other than interest and
attorney fees and costs). Tenant shall pay the late charge as Additional Rent with the next
installment of Rent.

22.2 Interest. If any Rent payment is not received by Landlord or Landlord's designee
within ten (10) days after that Rent is due, Tenant shall pay to Landlord annual interest on the
past-due amount, from the date due until paid, at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per year.

ARTICLE 23. NONWAIVER

23.1 Nonwaiver. No waiver of any provision of this Lease shall be implied by any
failure of either party to enforce any remedy for the violation of that provision, even if that
violation continues or is repeated. Any waiver by a party of any provision of this Lease must be
in writing. Such written waiver shall affect only the provision specified and only for the time and
in the manner stated in the writing. '

23.2  Acceptance and Application of Payment; Not Accord and Satisfaction. No receipt
by either party of a lesser payment than the Rent required under this Lease shall be considered to
be other than on account of the earliest amount due, and no endorsement or statement on any
check or letter accompanying a payment or check shall be considered an accord and satisfaction.
Each party may accept checks or payments without prejudice to its right to recover all amounts
due and pursue all other remedies provided for in this Lease. Either party's receipt of monies
from the other party after giving notice to the other party terminating this Lease in no way
reinstates, continues, or extends the Lease Term or affects that Termination Notice. After the
service of notice terminating this Lease, the beginning of an action, or the entry of final judgment
in any action, either party may receive monies from the other party. The payment and receipt of
the payment shall not waive or affect such prior notice, action, or judgment.

ARTICLE 24. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

24.1 Mediation of Disputes. LANDLORD AND TENANT AGREE TO MEDIATE
ANY DISPUTE OR CLAIM BETWEEN THEM ARISING OUT OF THIS LEASE OR ANY
RESULTING TRANSACTION BEFORE RESORTING TO ARBITRATION OR COURT
ACTION, Mediation is a process in which parties attempt to resolve a dispute by submitting it to
an impartial, neutral mediator who is authorized to facilitate the resolution of the dispute but who
is not empowered to impose a settlement on the parties. Mediation fee, if any, shall be divided
equally among the parties involved. Before the mediation begins, the parties agree to sign a
document limiting the admissibility in arbitration or any civil action of anything said, any
admission made, and any documents prepared, in the course of the mediation, consistent with
Evidence Code § 1119. IF ANY PARTY COMMENCES AN ARBITRATION OR COURT

-17-

12400001 9\419669.2:32609



ACTION BASED ON A DISPUTE OR CLAIM TO WHICH THIS PARAGRAPH APPLIES
WITHOUT FIRST ATTEMPTING TO RESOLVE THE MATTER THROUGH MEDIATION,
THEN IN THE DISCRETION OF THE ARBITRATOR(S) OR JUDGE, THAT PARTY
SHALL NOT BE ENTITLED TO RECOVER ATTORNEY’S FEES EVEN IF THEY WOULD
OTHERWISE BE AVAILABLE TO THAT PARTY IN ANY SUCH ARBITRATION OR
COURT ACTION. However, the filing of a judicial action to enable the recording of a notice of
pending action, for order of attachment, receivership, injunction, or other provisional remedies,
shall not in itself constitute a loss of the right to recover attorney’s fees under this provision. The
following matters are excluded from the requirement of mediation hereunder: (a) a judicial or
non-judicial foreclosure or other action or proceeding to enforce a deed of trust, mortgage, or
installment land sale contract as defined in Civil Code § 2985, (b) an unlawful detainer action,
(c) the filing or enforcement of a mechanic’s lien, and (d) any matter which is within the
jurisdiction of a probate court.

2.5.2 Arbitration of Disputes. Any dispute or claim in law or equity between Landlord
and Tenant arising out of this Agreement or any resulting transaction which is not settled
through mediation shall be decided by neutral, binding arbitration and not by court action,
except as provided by California law for judicial review of arbitration proceedings.

The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of either the
American Arbitration Association (AAA) or Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services,
Inc. (JAMS). The selection between AAA and JAMS rules shall be made by the claimant
first filing for the arbitration. The parties to an arbitration may agree in writing to use
different rules and/or arbitrator(s). In all other respects, the arbitration shall be conducted
in accordance with Part III, Title 9 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. Judgment
upon the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having
jurisdiction thereof. The parties shall have the right to discovery in accordance with Code
of Civil Procedure § 1283.05. The following matters are excluded from arbitration
hereunder: (a) a judicial or non-judicial foreclosure or other action or proceeding to
enforce a deed of trust, mortgage, or installment land sale contract as defined in Civil Code
§ 2985, (b) an unlawful detainer action, (c) the filing or enforcement of a mechanic’s lien,
(d) any matter which is within the jurisdiction of a probate or small claims court, and (¢)
an action for bodily injury or wrongful death, or for latent or patent defects to which Code
of Civil Procedure § 337.1 or § 337.15 applies. The filing of a judicial action to enable the
recording of a notice of pending action, for order of attachment, receivership, injunction,
or other provisional remedies, shall not constitute a waiver of the right to arbitrate under
this provision.

NOTICE: BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE AGREEING TO
HAVE ANY DISPUTE ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS INCLUDED IN THE
"ARBITRATION OF DISPUTES" PROVISION DECIDED BY NEUTRAL
ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED BY CALIFORNIA LAW AND YOU ARE GIVING UP
ANY RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO HAVE THE DISPUTE LITIGATED IN A
COURT OR JURY TRIAL. BY INITIALING IN THE SPACE BELOW YOU ARE
GIVING UP YOUR JUDICIAL RIGHTS TO DISCOVERY AND APPEAL, UNLESS
SUCH RIGHTS ARE SPECIFICALLY INCLUDED IN THE "ARBITRATION OF

- 18-

124000 9\ 19669,2:32609



DISPUTES" PROVISION. IF YOU REFUSE TO SUBMIT TO ARBITRATION AFTER
AGREEING TO THIS PROVISION, YOU MAY BE COMPELLED TO ARBITRATE
UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF THE CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE.
YOUR AGREEMENT TO THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION IS VOLUNTARY.

WE HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING AND AGREE TO
SUBMIT DISPUTES ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS INCL.UDED IN THE
"ARBITRATION" PROVISION TO NEUTRAL ARBITRATION

TENANT LANDLORD

ARTICLE 25. ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS

25.1  Attorney Fees and Costs. If either party undertakes litigation or arbitration against
the other party arising out of or in connection with this Lease, the prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the other party reasonable attorney fees, arbitration costs, and court costs
incurred. The prevailing party shall be determined under Civil Code section 1717(b)(1) or any
successor statute.

ARTICLE 26. LANDLORD'S ACCESS TO PREMISES

26.1 Landlord's Access to Premises. Landlord shall have the right to enter the
Premises at reasonable times with reasonable notice during normal business hours for the
purpose of maintaining or making such repairs or improvements as Landlord may be required to
make hereunder, so long as the same shall not unreasonably interfere with Tenant’s use and
occupancy of the Premises.

26.2 Method of Entry. For entry as permitted by this Article 26, Landlord shall at all
times have a key or, if applicable, a card key with which to unlock all the doors in the Premises.
In an emergency situation, Landlord shall have the right to use any means that Landlord
considers proper to open the doors in and to the Premises. Any such entry into the Premises by
Landlord shall not be considered a forcible or unlawful entry into, or a detainer of, the Premises
or an actual or constructive eviction of Tenant from any portion of the Premises.

26.3 Emergency Entry. Despite any other provision of this Article 26, Landlord and
Landlord's agents may enter the Premises without any advance notice when necessary to address
emergency situations. For purposes of this Article, an emergency situation is one that poses a
threat of imminent bodily harm or property damage. If Landlord makes an emergency entry onto
the Premises when no authorized representative of Tenant is present, Landlord shall provide
telephone notice to Tenant as soon as reasonably possible within twenty-four (24) hours after
that entry and shall take reasonable steps to secure the Premises until a representative of Tenant

arrives at the Premises.

- 19-

124000019\ 19669.2:32609



ARTICLE 27. MISCELLANEOUS

27.1  Section Heading. The titles to the various sections appearing in this Lease have
been inserted solely for the convenience of the parties and are otherwise no part of this Lease and
shall not in any manner be used to explain, modify or aid in the interpretation of any part hereof.

27.2  Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Lease and all exhibits referred to in this
Lease constitute the final, complete, and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement
between Landlord and Tenant pertaining to Tenant's lease of the Premises and supersedes all
prior and contemporaneous understandings or agreements of the parties. Neither party has been
induced to enter into this Lease by, and neither party is relying on, any representation or
warranty outside those expressly set forth in this Lease. This Lease may be amended only by an
agreement in writing signed by Landlord and Tenant.

27.3  Exhibits. The Exhibits and Addendum, if applicable, attached to this Lease are a
part of this Lease and incorporated into this Lease by reference.

27.4  Partial Invalidity. If a court or arbitrator of competent jurisdiction holds any Lease
clause to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part for any reason, the validity and
enforceability of the remaining clauses, or portions of them, shall not be affected unless an
essential purpose of this Lease would be defeated by loss of the invalid or unenforceable

provision.

27.5 Binding Effect. This Lease shall bind and benefit the parties to this Lease and
their legal representatives and successors in interest.

27.6 Independent Covenants. This Lease shall be construed as though its covenants
between Landlord and Tenant are independent and not dependent.

27.7 Governing Law. This Lease shall be construed and enforced in accordance with
the laws of the State of California.

27.8  Notices. Any notice, demand, request, consent, approval, or communication that
either party desires or is required to give to the other party or any other party or any other person
shall be in writing and either served personally or sent by prepaid, first-class mail. Notice shall
be deemed communicated within 48 hours from the time of mailing if mailed as provided in this
Section. Rent shall be paid to Landlord at Landlord's address.

27.9  Submission of Lease. Submission of this document for examination or signature
by the parties does not constitute an option or offer to lease the Premises on the terms in this
document or a reservation of the Premises in favor of Tenant. This document is not effective as a
Jease or otherwise until executed and delivered by both Landlord and Tenant.

27.10 Right To Lease. Landlord reserves the absolute right to contract with any other
person or entity to be a tenant in the Premises as Landlord, in Landlord's sole business judgment,
determines best to promote the interests of the Premises. Tenant does not rely on the expectation,

-20-

124000019\ 19669.2:32609



and Landlord does not represent, that any specific tenant or type or number of tenants will,
during the Lease Term, occupy any space in the Premises.

27.11 No Air Rights. No rights to any view from the Premises or to exterior light or air
to the Premises are created under this Lease.

27.12 Brokers. Landlord and Tenant each represents to the other that it has had no
dealings with any real estate broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this Lease, and
that they know of no other real estate broker or agent who is entitled to a commission or finder's
fee in connection with this Lease. Each party shall indemnify, protect, defend, and hold harmless
the other party against all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, lawsuits, judgments, and costs and
expenses (including reasonable attorney fees) for any leasing commission, finder's fee, or
equivalent compensation alleged to be owing on account of the indemnifying party's dealings
with any real estate broker or agent other than the Brokers. The terms of this section 27.12 shall
survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term.

27.13 Minimization of Interference. Landlord shall exercise its rights and perform its
obligations under this Lease, and otherwise operate the Premises, in such a way as to reasonably
minimize any resulting interference with Tenant's use of the Premises. Tenant shall exercise its
rights and perform its obligations under this Lease, and otherwise operate the Premises, in such a
way as to reasonably minimize any resulting interference with the operation of the Premises,
except as otherwise provided under this Lease.

27.14 Quiet Enjoyment. Landlord covenants and agrees with Tenant that, upon Tenant
paying Rent and performing all the covenants and conditions of the Lease to be performed by
Tenant, Tenant shall and may peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Premises for the
Term subject, however, to the terms of this Lease

27.15 Time of Essence. Time is of the essence of this Lease and each and every provision of
this Lease.

27.16 Counterpart Provision. This lease may be executed in counterpart.

27.17 Amendment. This Lease and the exhibits and attachments may be altered, amended or
revoked only by an instrument in writing signed by both Landlord and Tenant

Executed as of the

LANDLORD:
MARINA COAST WATER DISTRICT, a California public agency

By:

Name; Howard Gustafson

-21-

124008194 19669.2:32609



Its: Board President

By:

Name: Jim Heitzman

[ts: Board Secretary

" TENANT:
FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY

By:

Name

Its:

-22-

12400\019°\41966%.2:32609



EXHIBIT "A"

DIAGRAM OF LAND AND PREMISES

124000019\419669.2:32609



EXHIBIT "B"

SCHEDULE OF TENANT IMPROVEMENTS

12400001914 19669,2:32609



ATTACHMENT B
Item B¢
FORA Board Meeting, April 3, 200¢€

Resolution 09-03

Resolution Authorizing the Executive Officer
To Execute Sales Contract with Marina Coast
Water District and Association of Monterey
Bay Area Governments

DRAFT

S N

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted with reference to the following facts and
circumstances:

A. Since 2003, the Fort Ord Reuse Authority ("FORA") has engaged in joint -
planning with Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (“AMBAG"),
Builders Exchange of the Central Coast (“Builders Exchange”), and Carpenters
Union Local 605 (“Carpenters”) (collectively, “Partners”) with the intention of
developing a joint-use office park on the former Fort Ord.

B.In 2004, the City of Marina identified the Imjin Office Park site, a 4.75-acre
parcel at the corner of Imjin Parkway and 2" Avenue in the City of Marina, as
an appropriate site for FORA and the Partners to develop their joint-use office

park.

C. On December 12, 2008, the FORA Board authorized the Executive Officer to
execute an agreement with Marina Coast Water District (*“MCWD") regarding
the sale of FORA property and joint building consistent with the term sheet.

D. The FORA Board's approval of resolution 09-__ is consistent with previous
Board action and will facilitate Imjin Office Park property sale to MCWD.

NOW THEREFORE be it resolved:

1. Michael A. Houlemard, Jr., the FORA Executive Officer, shall be FORA’s
signatory for the execution of the FORA-MCWD-AMBAG sales agreement
and other documents necessary for the sale and transfer of the Imjin Office
Park Assessor's Parcel Numbers (“APN"} 031-251-038-000 (FORA’s parcel)
and 031-251-040-000 (AMBAG’s Parcel) to MCWD.

2. FORA's sale price to MCWD for APN 031-251-038-000 is $988,000.00.
3. AMBAG's sale price to MCWD for APN 031-251-038-000 is $588,000.00.
4. In addition to the sale price, FORA shall collect $135,082.20 at close of

escrow from MCWD for building permit fees previously paid and $220,855.92
at close of escrow from MCWD for AMBAG payments previously due to

FORA.



Upon motion by , seconded by , the foregoing
resolution was passed on the 3" day of April, 2009, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:
ABSTENTIONS:
ABSENT:

|, Mayor Rubio, Chair of the Board of Directors of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority of the
County of Monterey, State of California, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy
of an original order of the said Board of Directors duly made and entered under ltem
___, Page , of the board meeting minutes of , 2009 thereof, which
are kept in the Minute Book resident in the offices of the Fort Ord Reuse Authority.

DATED BY

Ralph Rubio
Chair, Board of Directors
Fort Ord Reuse Authority

@:¥SteveiStevo's bd reporls.200946¢ Res 09-03 04.03.09.doc



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY B

Subject: Administrative Committee report

Meeting Date: April 3, 2009
Agenda Number: 7a

INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive a report from the Administrative Committee.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The Administrative Committee met on and March 4, 11, and 25, 2009. The approved
minutes of the first two meetings are attached for your review. The minutes from the
March 25" meeting have not yet been prepared.

On March 11" the committee agreed to meet on April 1% to resolve issues remaining, if
any, from their discussions on March 25" of the three draft, auxiliary Habitat Conservation
Plan (“HCP") documents: Joint Powers Authority Agreement, the HCP Implementing
Agreement, and the sample ordinance for the jurisdictions regarding HCP implementation
procedures. Staff will provide an update during their informational report regarding ltem 6a
(HCP approval process) at the April board meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None
COORDINATION.:

Administrative Committee

Prepared bM&% Af@%av
Linda L. Stiehl

pr 31701 - admin. comm.doc




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY
100 12" Street, Building 2880
Marina, CA 93933
(831) 883-3672 (TEL) + (831) 883-3675 (FAX) + www.fora.org

MINUTES OF THE
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, March 4, 2009 AP P ROVE D
Call to Order
Chair Doug Yount called the meeting to order at 8:17 a.m. The following
representatives from the land recipient jurisdictions, representing o quorum, were

present:

Jim Cook — County of Monterey* Dick Goblirsch - City of Del Rey Oaks*
Doug Yount - City of Maring* Diana Ingersoll = City of Seaside*

Also present, as indicated by the roll sheet signatures, were:

James Arnold - FORA Robert Schaffer - MPC

James Feeney, FORA Rob Robinson - Army BRAC*

Bob Holden - MRWPCA Steve Endsley — FORA

Kathleen Ventimiglia — CSUMB* Mike Gallant, MST

Jim Heitzman - MCWD* Vicki Nakamura — MPC*

Graham Bice — UC MBEST * Michael Houlemard - FORA

Rich Guillen — City of Carmel {*) Jamie Schneider, Bestor Engineers.
Bill Reichmuth, City of Monterey Don Bachman, TAMC

Steve Matarazzo, Sand City Jonathan Garcia, FORA

* indicates a committee member and (*) indicates a FORA voting member but not
a land recipient  jurisdiction.

Voting board member jurisdictions not represented at this meeting were Salinas,
Pacific Grove.

Pledge of Allegiance
Chair Yount asked Graham Bice, who agreed, to lead the Pledge of Aliegiance.

Acknowledgements, announcements and correspondence - none

Public comment period - none

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
March 4, 2009
Page 1



Approval of February 18, 2009 meeting minutes

Motion to approve the February 18, 2009 meeting minutes was made and
approved by consensus,

Review Draft Board Agenda - March 13, 2009

Executive Officer Houlemard presented the FORA Board Agenda. He reviewed all
the items presented and made brief comments on the items. Mr. Houlemard noted
that the Committee would discuss the HCP, and water item later on in the agenda.
He noted that the board meeting may be moved or adjusted by Executive
Committee later today.

Old Business

ltem 7a - Habitat Conservation Plan (HCP): (1) Status report and schedule and (2)
Review drafts of Joint Powers Authority (“JPA") agreement, Implementing
Agreement (“IA") and Ordinance regarding HCP implementation procedures: Co-
Chair Houlemard presented this item. He noted that FORA Counsel Jerry Bowden
was available o answer any questions about the item. Mr. Houlemard noted that
new document drafts were passed out for member/jurisdictions to review. To date
FORA has received comments from MCWD and the Army. UCMBEST indicated they
will be giving their comments today. Mr. Houlemard noted he would like all
comments in by March 15% so that FORA can give them to Dept. of Fish and Game
so they can start their review process. He also suggested that the Admin committee
have a separate session just for the purpose of reviewing the document with
counsel in order that all members become comfortable with what is sent out to the
public. Jim Cook thought that was a brilliant idea. Mr. Houlemard noted that
comments to be added or submitted or any questions, send to Jonathan Garcia to
compile. These are very important documents. There are two things these
document will do, one is govern how we spend HCP money and the other is fo
extend take authorizations to projects. The meeting needs to be next week.

The question was asked if the “Stay Ahead™ provision would be done prior to the
meeting. Steve Endsley said that they are delaying the funding chapters, 2, 3 and
7. but that the Stay Ahead analysis would be done in time.  If a meeting was
planned for next week the funding portion wouldn't be done. FORA Counsel Jerry
Bowden, noted that the committee needs to look at this process in two ways. They
are “how to" documents. These are documents that Fish and Game and Fish and
wildlife insist that the jurisdictions execute. They have nothing to do with the HMP.
These should not take a great deal of fime, and are not foo complicated. As far as
process is concerned FORA really wants fo have all the people around the table in

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
March 4, 2009
Page 2



agreement about the substance so we can go fo them and be unified and say this
is what we are proposing. It is imperative that we get this done and very soon in
order to proceed. Alljurisdictions will have to adopt the agreements. It is slightly
different for the universities, as they are written for city or county. Doug Yount noted
that if the ordnance is for the primary purpose of development fee which provides
funding then UC isn't going to collect those fees. Graham Bice said that the UC will
be directing its developers to pay those fees. UC will either adopt a policy or will
develop something that is equivalent. The meeting was set for Wednesday, March
11, 2009 in the FORA Barn at 9:00. FORA will make sure that we have all the
documents ready for the meeting.

ltem 7b - Memorandum of Understanding between Marina Coast Water District and
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency regarding the Regional Urban
Water Augmentation Project (RUWAP): Chair Doug Yount explained the current
delay/problem with this item. He noted that there has been much work done in
bringing this to both boards. PCA board met on the 23, and while the negoftiations
were hoping for final approval of the MOU, it didn’t happen. The PCA Board did
agree to go back into negotiations, for lack of a better term, with members of the
MCWD board, and general managers and others.

The next step is to have some continued facilitated meetings to try to resolve final
issues of the MOU. Doug Yount noted that this item was important to FORA for a lot
of reasons. Augmented water is important to Fort Ord and all jurisdictions for
stimulus opportunities, water project, and the Water for Monterey County project.
Three options that are under review for the PUC. Mr. Yount noted it is important to
have this critical agreement between the two agencies — one agency provides
water and the other agency delivers it (not an easy issue}. The City of Marina and
MCWD if the MOU was completed would have an opportunity for stimulus funding.
PCA has a new chair, Lou Calcagno, who at the end of the meeting, said he will try
to move this along as quickly as possible. Mr. Yount further noted that losing an
opportunity with stimulus funding would be detrimental and was concerned that if
the members don't solve this issue of regional water, there will be others who will
solve it for us. Jim Heitzman then noted that PCA was not responding to his inquiries
and that it seemed unlikely they will sign the agreement. He also noted that Cal
Am wants to take recycled water and are ready to join the effort. He further noted
that there were two facilitators at the Admin table that have tried to get the MOU
done. He expressed frustration about what else MCWD can do and having to pay
attorneys to reviews draft over and over. He described further concerns but said
maybe with new leadership and mayors, supervisor, there should be some hope.
Bob Holden from MRWPCA was asked by Chair Yount if he had anything to add. He
indicated that he had nothing to add. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Holden left the

meeting.

FORA Administrative Commitiee Meeting
March 4, 2009
Page 3



Jim Cook asked what the main issue is that’s holding it up. Michael Houlemard
noted that MRWPCA felt that the replenishment be a part of this activity stating that
the replenishment and questions about handling summer water bring in another
level of complexity. Mr. Heitzman expressed concern about an agreement without
an EIR that makes an agreement null and void. Doug Yount said that it was clear
that after closed session there was still concern by PCA Board members. Bill
Reichmuth noted that there is litfle excuse for the delay and asked how we are
going to distribute RUWAP water. He poinied out that the pipe should go all the
way to South Boundary Road, there are a lot of uses for this and it makes a lot of
sense. Diana Ingersoll said that Seaside was having a study session on water,
(March 19t gt 5:30) which will review all projects and talk about policy, make o
strong statement as to the different projects that should move forward. Seaside is
ready to take recycled water and that would help regarding the water needs.
Seaside is as frustrated as anyone else. Bill Reichmuth noted there is a Rob
Wellington legal opinion that effects this issue and asked Michael Houlemard if he
could ask authority counsel to review. Jim Feeney noted that 750,000, has already
been spent. He said that he has been through 4 general managers, and the
message has been the same. We ought to re-examine what CFD requires MCWD to
do, what it has been doing and been doing a good job.

Michael Houlemard noted that all should remmember that MCRWRA has arole. He
said this has come o the board; we are prepared to give to the board and give
them an update. This conversation has to be made with the policy makers and
urged all to brief policy makers. We all need to understand/franslate money has
been spent on this program, and there is not a rate payer to repay the money that
has been spent. This puts PCA in a difficult situation if replenishment is not included
and it puts policy makers in a difficult situation.

New Business

tem 8a — March 18, 2009 Meeting Date :  Jim Heitzman asked if he could make this

motion to cancel the March 18 meeting, the
motion was seconded and approved by consensus.

Adjournment

Co-Chair Houlemard adjourned the meeting at 9:18 a.m.

Minutes prepared by Sharon Strickland.

FORA Administrative Committee Meeting
March 4, 2009
Page 4



HORITY BOARD REPOR

Subject: Executive Officer's travel report

Meeting Date: April 3, 2009
Agenda Number: 7b

INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive an oral report from the Executive Officer regarding his trip to Washington, DC,
from March 24-26, 2009.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

The Executive Committee approved the Executive Officer's trip to Washington, DC, at their
meeting on March 4, 2009. He wijthbe in the nation’s capital from March 24-26, 2009 to

continue his exploration of feder
a copy of his meeting schedule.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

Expenses will be reimbursed according to FORA's travel policy.

COORDINATION:

Executive Committee

7 ‘
Prepared b@e@éﬁ&é@pp
" Linda L. Stiehl

u:Nindawinword guorabrdveporis\2008\apr 17D - eos travel rpl.doc



TROUTMAN SANDERS STRATEGIES
e ——

Atlanta * Richmond » Washington
401 Ninth Street, NW « Suite 1000 » Washington, D.C. 20004-2134

, Tel: 202.274.2988 » Pax: 202.654.5617
Itinerary www.troutmansandersstrategies.com

March 24-26, 2009

March 24, 2009

7:30 p.m. Dinner with George Schlossberg and Nithin Akuthota (Kutak Rock)
RESERVATION DETAILS:
Michael Houlemard — Party of 3
Oceanaire Seafood Room - DC
1201 F Street, NW, 202-347-2277

March 25, 2009

8:00 a.m. Meeting with Barry Steinberg (location TBD)
Work: 202/828-2316; Cell: 703/629-8737

10:00 a.m. Meeting with Ryan Hunt, Legislative Assistant
Office of Senator Dianne Feinstein
331 Hart Senate Building, 202-224-3841

11:00 a.m. Meeting with Governor Schwarzenegger’s DC Office
Melissa Decker, Eric Swedlund, Dave Lucas
Hall of States, 444 N. Capitol St., NW, Suite 134 (N. Capitol & E)
202-624-5275

12:00 p.m. Meeting with Darryl Beckmann, Deputy Commissioner
Department of Interior, Bureau of Reclamation
1849 C Street, NW (between 18" & 19™) (enter on C Street)
Security will have your names.
Go to the 7" Floor, Room 7649 (walk to far end of the building)
(Contact: Michelle—202-513-0616)

1:15 p.m. Meeting with Patrick O’Brien
Office of Economic Adjustment
400 Army Navy Dr., Suite 205
Arlington, Virginia
Photo ID required. Upon arrival, call 703-604-6020 and request an escort.

3:30 p.m. Meeting with Lynn Abramson, Legislative Assistant
Office of Senator Barbara Boxer
112 Hart Senate Building, 202-224-3553

4:30 p.m. Meeting with Congressman Sam Farr and Rochelle Dornatt
1126 Longworth House Building, 202-225-2861
530 p.m. Meet at Kutak Rock
7:00 p.m. Call the FORA office to participate by phone in the Executive Committee meeting

March 26, 2009

8:00 a.m. Breakfast/coffee meeting with Tom Lederle, Army BRAC Director
Location to be determined [Work: 703/602-2854/ Cell: 757-880-3451]

~John Freshman - Office: 202/274-2850; Cell: 202/258-0076 or
~Patrick Anderson — Office: 202/274-2936; Cell: 202/680-0127



FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD EPORT e
EXECUTIVE OFFICER'SREPORT

Department of Toxic Substances Control Land Use Covenants |

Subject:
annual reporting
Meeting Date: April 3, 2009
Agenda Number: 7c INFORMATION
RECOMMENDATION:

Receive an update on the Department of Toxic Substances Control ("DTSC”) Land Use
Covenants ("LUC") annual reporting.

BACKGROUND:

On September 14, 2007, the FORA Board approved a Memorandum of Agreement
among DTSC, California State University Monterey Bay, University of California
Monterey Bay, Education, Science, and Technology Center, Monterey Peninsula
College, County of Monterey, the Cities of Seaside, Marina, Del Rey QOaks, and
Monterey. The agreement specified that FORA would reimburse DTSC's oversight
costs (approximately $20,000 annually} for the first two years of annual reporting
through Early Transfer/Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement (ET/ESCA)
funds designated for this purpose and, after the first initial two years, FORA would
reimburse DTSC for its oversight costs through dues collected from the eight reporting
entities and FORA would collect an additional 15% administrative cost from the eight
reporting entities in order to reimburse FORA staff time associated with the activity of
collecting and compiling annual reports and submitting them to DTSC.

DISCUSSION:

FORA is collecting and compiling annual reports and submitting them to DTSC for the
first annual year's report (July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008). FORA had anticipated
transfer of the ET/ESCA parcels from the Army prior to June 30, 2008 in order to apply
to DTSC's oversight costs. Since the ET/ESCA parcels did not transfer before this date,
DTSC’s oversight costs must be reimbursed from the FORA general fund. DTSC's
oversight costs are expected to bg| less than $10,000 for the first annual reporting
period.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Reviewed by FORA Controller

The General fund will pay approximately $10,000 for the first annual report and
ET/ESCA funds will pay for the second annual report. The subsequent reports will be
paid by the reporting entities.

COORDINATION:
Executive Committee, Administrative Committee, DTSC

Prepared by . Reviewed by D g’{Zf,r\ 5«(%4( )
Jonathan Garcia - /Steve Endsley “

Approved %//// ﬁ-}//}?

ichael A. Hou$mard, Jr.




FORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
Subject: Rabobank debt consolidation/priority capital improvements loan

Meeting Date: April 3, 2009
Agenda Number: 7d IMFORMATION

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive a report regarding a loan application which, if concluded, may consolidate existing debt,
provide stimulus grant matching funds, and finance priority basewide capital/operational needs.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:

For the past two years, FORA staff has noted the need in several venues (FORA Board,
Administrative, Executive, Finance and Capital Improvement Program Committee meetings), to
liquidate the Fort Ord Reuse Authority’s (“FORA’s”) 50% ownership interest in Preston Park
properties to fund basewide obligations. Reduction in both jurisdictional future development
projections and the receipt of Community Facilities District fees, land sale revenues, and tax
increment, requires FORA to explore this land sale option now. Prior to pursuing this option, FORA
staff and Marina staff have evaluated several other approaches that are not feasible in the current
depressed economic climate. Therefore, staff is exploring a loan as the most likely way to
generate cash.

This report informs the Board that staff intends to process a loan application secured by FORA's
share of Preston Park. We do not know the current value of this asset. The 2008 appraisal is
being updated. After the valuation and loan review process begins, staff would return to the Board
with recommendations of how best to use the loan proceeds. Alternatives include: consolidate and
retire existing debt, provide stimulus grant local matching funds, secure staffing costs for the
coming years, and finance priority basewide capital projects.

FORA staff is also pursuing grant funds through the Federal stimulus program via the Department
of Commerce Economic Development Administration. If FORA is invited to submit an application,
a local match commitment would be required. A loan secured against the Preston Park asset
could be used to provide the local match.

FORA staff will apply to Rabobank for the loan for the reasons noted. Rabobank is the logical
lender because it finances debt that may be retired by the proposed lecan and holds the most
recent appraisal. FORA staff will seek Board authority prior to executing the loan.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Positive. FORA’s share of Preston Park asset may retire existing debt and finance certain required
priority capital improvements to accommodate anticipated development projects as the economy
recovers.

COORDINATION:

Administrative Committee, Executive Committee, City of Marina, Rabobank

Prepared by

" lvana Bednarik Michael A. €oulemard, Jr.




FIORT ORD REUSE AUTHORITY BOARD REPORT
Sujc: | i ‘ ute

i Meeting Date: April 3, 2009
| Agenda Number: 7e

Pl ooy
[t PN {

INFORMATION

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Receive a report from the Controller regarding outstanding receivables.

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:
This is an update report regarding the outstanding receivables that remain uncollected as of March
31, 2009,

1. East Garrison Partners (EGP) - Interest reimbursements

When Monterey County (County) approved the EGP project in 2005, certain land sale revenue was
deferred; a portion was due to Fort Ord Reuse Authority (FORA) under terms of the FORA/County
Implementation Agreement. As a consequence, EGP, County and FORA entered intc a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), which requires EGP to pay FORA monthly interest payments
of about $24,000 and to repay the $4.1M principal due in 2011 or upon termination of the MOU. In
September 2008, EGP defaulted on its interest payments breaching the MOU terms.

< FORA staff is working with County staff to bring a formal recommendation to the FORA Board.

2. Del Rey Oaks (DRO) — Annual loan payment

In August 2008, the FORA Board approved a payment plan DRO developer requested regarding the
pollution legal liability insurance. The DRO's annual payment is $256,023 and the developer has
made five monthly payments totaling $ 35,000. The developer owes FORA $30,000 for January-
March 2009 installments; $221,023 of the annual payments is unpaid.

% FORA staff is in contact with the developer who promises payment by April 3.

3. Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) - Land sale proceeds.
In November 2007, FORA sold a parcel to AMBAG. AMBAG requested that the sale agreement
allows AMBAG to pay the outstanding balance of $171,288 in three annual instaliment that include
7% interest. As of March 31, 2009, FORA has yet to receive the first instaliment.

< FORA staff is working with AMBAG and Marina Coast Water District (MCWD) on MCWD’s
purchase of the parcel. Formal approval by AMBAG and MCWD is pending; FORA Board has
already approved a similar transaction. Approvai of these documents enables AMBAG to pay
FORA upon receipt of land sale proceeds from MCWD.

FISCAL IMPACT:
A negative impact on FORA's net revenues and reserves for the fiscal year; FORA spends its own
resources including debt to substitute for these uncollected payments.

COORDINATION:
Executive Committee.

Prepared by reug )/ ’ z

Ivana Bednarik




AMBAG payments due FORA Amount

Outstanding invoices for Imjin Office Park ' $18,486.28
project permit/review fees to City of
Marina, State Water Resources Board,
PG&E, and MCWD (cash at Escrow)

Land payments — balance of Principal (cash $171,288
at Escrow)
Land payments — Interest (cash and/or $17,335.77

credits to be negotiated by Executive
Officer and reported to Escrow)
Land payments - Additional Financing $13,745.87
Charges {cash and/or credits to be
negotiated by Executive Officer and
reported to Escrow)

Total $220,855.92

Staff recommends that the Board approve Resolution 09-03 and authorize the Executive
Officer to modify the Sales Agreement with AMBAG and instruct escrow to collect cash
payments for principal and amounts due FOR A and/or apply fair market value credits for
portions of the interest and additional financing costs.



A0B ex syied@Aeibd
TIVW-1d0O SE8T-6¥9 (1€8) TIVD

01 TIRdY A9 AVAD-HVTD IvVd dASY 38va1d

ANOWTYID FHI Y314V
J3IAYAS 39 TTIM SINIWHSTI4T4d

LOT ONDIIVI TTVH TTIMTILS IHL NI
dTaH 39 TTIM ANOWIHID IH L

WYV L1 « 6007 ST TJV « AVASINAIM

AAVd 41IVILS
SANNA AJO 1404

10 DNINIJO ANVYD FHL

OL GA4.LIANT 34V NOA

"30] bupjied

943 03 Wbiens

pue abpugqg au3 Jano
0B pue Yoy uing .

‘peOJ 33 JO puUD
3y3 03 0b pue (ubis
193435 ou) bu uany .

‘ubis yieq 21015
ssung pIQ 1o4 ayj
0] sasnoyatem ayj
ised 0b pue 193.15

Wi Uo Yaf wing -

'subis [euonoaUIp
syled a1es
UMOJIQ B3 MOj|O »

"SNUIAY 15414 UO
4Bl uiny pue ubis
do3s 354y 33 03 09 «

19215 AJRAIg UO
Y3| udni pue ubis
dols 354y 2y3 03 05y »

__..o_um..n_a_wu
,mr_:mno pue.s
i | SHed a3ers

mm.::n_ P10 104

\\v YHoN
\%m__z 0

BULIRY

Aemubry 21815 R
dS SBUN(] PIO L0 01 2IN0Y "\,

‘BNUBAY PUOD3S U0

s winy pue 1ybidois puodas auyl 03 09 -

"(A242]UON puB BULIR| U9IM]D])

T AemybiH 4o 3ixe Je3yByaybr sy sxeL »

SNOILLDIFIG




MHV( 11VIS SANNQJ IO O

NOIIVYOLSIY INNA 3

TIVH TTIMTILS §

10 ONINIJO ANVYD 1HL

MAV] 1LVLS SANN(J QIO 130




